
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services Team 
Leader, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422520

E-mail: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk 

Date: 20 December 2018

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 9 JANUARY 2019 AT 6.30 PM

THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY

Members of the Committee:
Sandy Lovatt (Chairman)
Janet Shelley (Vice-
Chairman)
Stuart Davenport
Robert Hall

Jenny Hannaby
Anthony Hayward
Bob Johnston

Ben Mabbett
Catherine Webber

Substitutes Councillors
Yvonne Constance
Margaret Crick
St John Dickson

Katie Finch
Chris Palmer
Helen Pighills

Julia Reynolds
Emily Smith
Reg Waite

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.



2

1. Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping 
matters.

2. Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes  (Pages 4 - 6)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 5 December 2018.  

4. Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

6. Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.



3

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page.

7. P18/V2227/RM - 
Parcel South 
East A, Crab 
Hill, Reading 
Road, Wantage, 
OX12 8HT  

Appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale for the erection of 82 residential 
dwellings and associated 
infrastructure. 

P18/V2227/RM 7 - 19

8. P18/V2049/FUL 
- Land at Park 
Farm, East 
Challow  

Residential development comprising 
the erection of 87 dwellings including 
associated amenity space, access, 
parking and ancillary development.

P18/V2049/FUL 20 - 46

9. P18/V2481/FUL 
- Abingdon 
School 
Faringdon Road 
Abingdon, 
OX14 1BQ  

Erection of a three-storey education 
building to accommodate a lodge, 
house rooms, computer science and 
economic teaching space.

P18/V2481/FUL 47 - 63

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 5 December 2018 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday, 5 December 2018 at 6.30 pm
in the The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway, 
Wantage, OX12 9BY

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Sandy Lovatt (Chairman), Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman), 
Stuart Davenport, Robert Hall, Jenny Hannaby, Anthony Hayward, Bob Johnston, 
Ben Mabbett and Catherine Webber

Officers: Emily Hamerton, Andy Heron, Nicola Meurer, Will Piotrowski and Stuart Walker

Pl.90 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

Pl.91 Apologies for absence 

There were no apologies for absence.

Pl.92 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2018 as a 
correct record and agree that the Chairman sign them as such.

Pl.93 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

Pl.94 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

Pl.95 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 5 December 2018 Pl.2

Pl.96 P18/V1820/FUL - Land south of Red Gables, Kings Lane, Faringdon 

The committee considered part-retrospective application P18/V1820/FUL for a 
replacement dwelling on land south of Red Gables, Kings Lane, Faringdon

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Officer updates:
 The parish council maintain their objection to the application.
 Building control have no objection; they recommend that the applicants seek advice 

from a flooding and drainage consultant to mitigate any issues, relating in particular 
to the party wall.

Andi Cunningham, a representative of Longcot Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  

Nick Boyd, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.  

Heloise Goodley, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Committee members requested that a slab levels condition is included and that the 
permitted development Condition 5 is extended to include outbuildings and extensions.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application with the additional and 
amended condition as detailed above, was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/V1820/O, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Time limit - full application.
2. Approved plans list.
3. Boundary details provided in accordance with plans.
4. Materials in accordance with plans.
5. Permitted development restrictions – roof alterations, outbuildings, extensions.
6. Slab levels.

Pl.97 P18/V2470/FUL - Land off Sheepstead Road, Marcham, Abingdon 

Councillor Catherine Webber, the local ward member, stepped down from the committee 
and took no part in the debate or voting for this item.

The committee considered application P18/V2470/FUL to vary Condition 2 (Approved 
plans) of application P16/V3224/FUL on land off Sheepstead Road, Marcham, Abingdon.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Officer update: one further letter of objection had been received from a resident, reiterating 
concerns raised in the report.

Simon Handy, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 5 December 2018 Pl.3

Catherine Webber, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application.  

A motion, moved and seconded, to authorise the head of planning to approve the 
application was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to authorise the head of planning to grant planning permission for application 
P18/V2470/FUL, subject to the following:

I. Completion of a deed of variation to the S106 agreement to secure
contributions towards local infrastructure and affordable housing; and

II. The following conditions:

1. Time limit – development to begin no later than 11 August 2020.
2. Approved plans.
3. Materials (samples).
4. Construction traffic management plan.
5. Parking.
6. New estate roads.
7. Footpath link north details (to Cow Lane).
8. Footpath link south details (to Howard Cornish Road).
9. Footpath links prior to occupation.
10.Travel information pack.
11.Foul drainage strategy.
12.Sustainable drainage scheme.
13.No occupation until drainage scheme implementation.
14.Tree protection.
15.Landscaping scheme.
16.Landscape maintenance.
17.Ecology mitigation measures.
18.Boundary details.
19.Bicycle parking and bin storage.
20.External charging points for electric vehicles - dwellings with

garages.
21.Garage accommodation.
22.Hours of operation - construction/demolition sites.

Informative - Planning obligation.

 
The meeting closed at 7.30 pm

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2227/RM
SITE Parcel South East A Crab Hill Reading Road 

Wantage, OX12 8HT
PARISH Wantage
PROPOSAL Appearance, landscaping, layout and scale for 

the erection of 82 residential dwellings and 
associated infrastructure. The outline planning 
application was an environment impact 
assessment application and an environmental 
statement was submitted to the planning 
authority at the time.(As amended by plans and 
information recevied 8 November 2018).

WARD MEMBER(S) Charlotte Dickson
St John Dickson

APPLICANT Mr Mark Gay
OFFICER Stuart Walker

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that reserved matters are approved subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard
1. Approved plans.

Pre-occupation
2. Details of boundary treatment to plots 17, 57, 80 & 81 to be agreed 

and implemented prior to first occupation.
3. Plots 60 - 74 (which back onto the A417 Reading Road) to be 

constructed with acoustic glazing measures and noise mitigation 
for external living areas with details agreed prior to commencement 
above slab level.

Informative: 
The applicant is reminded of the obligation of compliance with the relevant 
conditions on the outline application that apply to this phase (e.g. CEMP 
and LEMP implementation).

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application seeks approval of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale 

(the reserved matters) for a phase of the Crab Hill strategic site.  Known as 
Parcel South East A, it proposes 82 dwellings with associated infrastructure.

1.2 The application comes to committee because Wantage Town Council objects 
to the proposal.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2227/RM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

1.3 Parcel South East A is situated on the south eastern edge of the Crab Hill 
allocated housing site, a site identified in the adopted local plan 2031, part 1 
for up to 1500 dwellings.  Outline planning permission was granted in July 
2015 with variations to parameter plans permitted in November 2017.

1.4  The site’s location within the development is set out below:

1.5 The site will be accessed via a new road off the A417 which was approved as 
part of advanced infrastructure works.

1.6 The proposed development has been designed and developed to accord with 
the approved masterplan, site wide strategy and design guidance documents 
approved under application P16/V2590/DIS.  Buildings are predominantly two 
storeys in height with a mix of 1 to 5 bed units fronting onto access roads with 
secondary roads leading to a series of shared surfaces and private drives.

1.7 The proposal has been amended to take account of comments from the 
highways authority and the current site layout plan and typical street 
elevations are attached at Appendix 1.

1.8 All plans and supporting technical documents accompanying the application 
are available to view online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

1.9 An extract of the current phasing plan to show the site context is below:

Page 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 Wantage 

Town Council
Objection:

 The 5 additional (non-allocated visitor) spaces do not 
meet design guidelines and offsite additional spaces 
are not included in the application. 

 We support the comments of the landscape architect.

Residents Wantage and Grove Campaign Group raise the following 
issues:

 We recognise that infrastructure including the 
woodland, footpaths, cycleways and roads are 
outside this application but would like a condition 
included in the approval that all the infrastructure 
relevant to this application (including the screening 
woodland) should be in place before construction 
begins. This site is very visible from the AONB and 
the screening woodland was a requirement of the 
original application and is urgently required. 

 In addition, we are concerned that there appear to be 
no unallocated visitor parking spaces within the 
development and therefore wonder where visitors are 
required to park?

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

One letter of comment has been received regarding whether 
cycle tracks are included in this development.  (Cycle routes 
do not run through this parcel of the development).

Oxfordshire 
County 
Council

Highways
Original plans - Objection.

 Proposals are not in compliance with approved 
documents.

 Proposed details relating to layout and parking are not 
considered to be satisfactory and could result in 
undesirable outcomes such as high vehicle speeds 
and unwanted street parking.

Amended plans – No objection.

Archaeology
No objection.

Thames Water No objection.

Drainage 
Engineer

No objection, but further details on surface water will be 
required under condition 39 of the outline prior to the phase 
commencing.

Countryside 
Officer

No objection.

Protection 
Team

No objection, subject to noise mitigation measures being 
provided and implemented.

Contaminated 
Land Officer

No objection.

Landscape 
Officer

Holding objection to original plans – further information 
required (see comments online).

No objection to amended plans, subject to revised boundary 
details for some plots (secured by condition). 

Waste 
Management 
Team

No objection.

Urban Design 
Officer

No objection.

Housing 
Development.

No objection. The number, size and mix of affordable 
housing is acceptable.

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P18/V2189/A - Approved (24/10/2018)

Hoardings along the southern boundary of the Crab Hill site fronting onto the 
A417.

P18/V1009/DIS - Approved (25/07/2018)
Discharge of condition 35 - contamination on application ref. P17/V0652/FUL

P18/V1106/DIS - Approved (25/06/2018)
Discharge of conditions 7 - housing delivery document and 17 - phasing plan 
on application ref. P17/V0652/FUL 

P18/V1022/DIS - Approved (08/06/2018)
Discharge of condition 5 - submission of foul water strategy on application ref. 
P17/V0652/FUL 

P18/V0385/DIS - Approved (11/05/2018)
Discharge of conditions 15 - development brief and 48 - access design on 
application on P13/V1764/O / P17/V0652/FUL

P18/V1008/DIS - Approved (08/05/2018)
Discharge of condition 33 - archaeology on application ref. P17/V0652/FUL

P17/V2674/RM - Approved (04/05/2018)
Reserved Matters application for infrastructure works for Phase 1B and Centre 
West of the Crab Hill development.(as amended by drawings and information 
received 22 January, 9 March and 10 April 2018).

P17/V3248/RM - Approved (02/05/2018)
Reserved Matters application for infrastructure works including ground 
levelling, internal access road, service diversions and landscaping (as 
amended by plans and information received 20 March 2018).

P18/V0515/DIS - Approved (06/04/2018)
Discharge of condition 40 - foul drainage on application ref. P13/V1764/O / 
P17/V0652/FUL

P17/V0652/FUL - Approved (27/11/2017)
Variation of Conditions 1 (amended parameter plans), 33 (additional land to be 
included within the Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation) and 52 
(vehicle access) of Planning Permission P13/V1764/O (as amended by letter 
received 23 March 2017).

P17/V1447/DIS - Approved (18/10/2017)
Discharge of condition(s) 26 (landscaping), 48, (highways) and 59 (broadband) 
of planning permission P13/V1764/O 

P17/V1922/DIS - Approved (06/09/2017)
Discharge of condition 35 on application ref.  P13/V1764/O

Page 11

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2189/A
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1009/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1106/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1022/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V0385/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1008/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V2674/RM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V3248/RM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V0515/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V0652/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V1447/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V1922/DIS


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

P16/V2590/DIS - Approved (05/05/2017)
P13/V1764/O Conditions(s) 6, 7, 8, 16 and 17.

P13/V1764/O - Approved (13/07/2015)
Outline application for residential development of up to 1500 dwellings 
including new employment space (use class B1), a neighbourhood 
centre/community hub (use classes A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, B1, C2, D1 and D2), 
new primary school, central park, ancillary areas (including allotments and 
sports pitches) with access off the A338 Grove Road and three accesses off 
the A417 Reading Road. Provision of a strategic link road between the A417 
and the A338 Road to be known as the Wantage Eastern Link Road (WELR). 
All matters reserved except means of access to the development and the 
WELR.  Additional information received as amplified by agent's covering letter 
dated 30th October 2013 and agent's e-mail dated 10th December 2013.

3.2 Pre-application History
P18/V1523/PEJ - (18/07/2018)
Erection of 82 residential dwellings – Parcel South East A

P16/V2837/PEJ - (16/02/2017)
St Modwen Phase 1 at Crab Hill Wantage

P16/V0761/PEM - (08/08/2016)
Residential development

P13/V0812/PEJ - (31/07/2013)
Pre-application office meeting for housing development

3.3 Screening Opinion requests
P12/V1982/SCO - Approved (05/12/2012)
Scoping Report.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 A Reserved Matters application is considered to be a new application for 

planning permission under the 2017 Environmental Impact Assessment 
Regulations.  The outline application was EIA development and was 
accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES) and an addendum update 
statement, and the following areas of potential impact were addressed: 
landscape and visual impact; transport; historic environment; ecology and 
nature conservation; water resources and flood risk; noise; air quality; socio-
economic impacts; cumulative effects and residual effects and mitigation.

4.2 It is considered this Reserved Matters application falls within the ambit of the 
approved ES, and a further addendum is not required for this application.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The relevant material planning considerations in relation to the determination of 

this application are:

 The principle of development

Page 12

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V2590/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V1764/O
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1523/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V2837/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V0761/PEM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V0812/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P12/V1982/SCO


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

 Housing types and tenures
 Design and layout
 Residential amenity
 Open space, landscape, and trees
 Flood risk and drainage
 Traffic, parking and highway safety
 Historic Environment
 Biodiversity

5.2 The principle of development
The site is allocated in the adopted Local Plan as part of a larger site suitable 
for around 1500 dwellings.  Outline planning permission together with means of 
access was granted in July 2015.  As such the principle for the development 
and means of access are established.

5.3 Housing types and tenures
Local Plan policy CP22 seeks to ensure the right mix of housing sizes, types 
and tenures are provided on all residential sites.  This should be in accordance 
with the Council’s strategic housing market assessment (SHMA) unless an 
alternative approach can be demonstrated to be more appropriate.  

5.4 The wider development will deliver a SHMA compliant mix, but to enable 
flexibility in delivery of the site the exact mix will vary between phases as 
agreed through the approved housing delivery document under application 
P18/V1106/DIS.  Parcel South East A will provide 25 affordable units and 57 
market units in a mix of apartments, terraced, semi-detached and detached 
dwellings.  This is in accordance with the approved housing delivery document.  
Officers therefore consider the proposal strikes the right balance for a mix of 
properties in this phase and accords with policy CP22.

5.5 Design and Layout
Following concerns over the initial proposal in terms of the layout, the scheme 
has been amended.  The density of this phase is approximately 40 dwellings 
per hectare, which is in line with the approved parameter plan. The layout is 
based around a clearly defined network of streets and dwellings have been 
designed / positioned to front public space to provide a coherent environment 
for all users and a sense of enclosure.  There is a mix of on street parking, on 
plot parking and garaging.  Private amenity space and bin storage is also 
provided for each dwelling. Proposed dwellings in terms of design, heights and 
mass are reflective of the character areas approved as part of the site wide 
strategies and design guidance for the development.  Overall, the proposal is 
considered compliant with the adopted design guide and policy CP37.

5.6 Residential Amenity
The site is located adjacent to the A417 and road noise from traffic using this 
road could potentially affect residents of the proposed development.  The 
environmental statement submitted with the outline application recommended 
mitigation and the Environmental Health Protection Team raise no objection to 
this Reserved Matters proposal, subject to the implementation of appropriate 

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

measures.  This can be secured by planning condition.  The proposal therefore 
accords with saved policy DC10, subject to the implementation of approved 
mitigation.

5.7 Open Space, landscaping and trees
The application does not propose areas of public open space, as these will be 
located elsewhere within the wider development in accordance with the 
approved land use and landscape parameter plans.  Each dwelling has private 
amenity space.  The proposal therefore accords with saved policy H23.

5.8 The application is supported with a detailed landscape plan and the proposed 
layout has sufficient space to deliver a well landscaped scheme to accord with 
saved policy DC6.  The landscape officer raises no objection to the proposed 
landscape scheme subject to minor revisions issues on boundaries. This can 
be covered by condition.

5.9 Concern has been raised regarding the implementation of structural woodland 
planting and other infrastructure agreed as part of the site wide phasing 
strategy.  This is to be undertaken by the master developer St Modwen and is 
located outside of the applicant’s control.  The master developer is currently 
implementing advanced infrastructure in accordance with the approved 
phasing.  As such officers consider there is no reasonable requirement to 
amend this Reserved Matters scheme further to include planting of those areas 
to be maintained by the management company outside of the application site.

5.10 Flood Risk and drainage
The site is within flood zone 1 which is the zone least susceptible to flooding 
and preferred in flood risk terms for housing development.  The site is not at 
risk of river flooding.  A sustainable drainage scheme has been designed and 
will be implemented through the discharge of planning conditions imposed on 
the outline application. The drainage engineer has no objections to the 
Reserved Matters.  The proposal is therefore acceptable in respect of flood risk 
and drainage and is compliant with local plan policy CP42.

5.11 Traffic, parking and highway safety
The proposed access connection points from the public highway were 
approved under the outline application.  The proposed road network (as 
amended) within the site parcel is acceptable and the Highways Authority raise 
no objection to the proposal.

5.12 The town council raise concern over the amount of unallocated visitor parking.  
The county council’s adopted parking standards are flexible and state “It is 
recommended that the number of allocated spaces is chosen first, followed by 
the additional number of unallocated spaces. An iterative process can be used 
to get the most appropriate total number of spaces to suit the development. 
The design of the road and housing layout should also be part of this process.  
When for reasons of good urban design more allocated spaces are provided 
than the standard amount (e.g. space in front of a garage for the reason of road 
safety) then the number of unallocated spaces may be reduced.”

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

The standards also confirm “the main principle is to include an element of 
unallocated parking to maximise flexibility and economy of land use” and “the 
placing of parking spaces within new residential areas should be considered as 
an essential part of achieving a high quality urban design.”

5.13 The total parking requirement for the site is 94 allocated and 18 unallocated 
(112 spaces).  The proposal provides 110 allocated and eight unallocated 
parking spaces (118 spaces).  Officers consider this provides sufficient levels 
of parking in accordance with adopted parking standards and the Highway 
Authority raise no objection.

5.14 Overall, the proposal is therefore acceptable in parking and highway safety 
terms and accords with saved policy DC5.

5.15 Historic Environment
There are no archaeological constraints on this part of the site and the proposal 
accords with saved policy HE10 and the NPPF.

5.16 Biodiversity
The countryside officer has assessed the application and raises no objection, 
confirming “this part of the site has no existing ecological constraints”.  The 
proposal therefore would be in accordance with policy CP46.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 This application has been assessed against the development plan, the National 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and all other material planning 
considerations.

6.2 The site is allocated in the adopted local plan and there is an extant outline 
planning permission on the site for up to 1500 dwellings.

6.3 The proposed Reserved Matters details of access, layout, appearance, 
landscaping and scale are acceptable.  Subject to the recommended conditions, 
the application amounts to sustainable development and should be approved.

The following planning policies have been taken in to account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 1:

CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP05  -  Housing Supply Ring-Fence
CP07  -  Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP15  -  Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area
CP22  -  Housing Mix
CP23  -  Housing Density
CP24  -  Affordable Housing

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

CP26  -  Accommodating Current and Future Needs of the Ageing Population
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP36  -  Electronic communications
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38  -  Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
CP39  -  The Historic Environment
CP40  -  Sustainable Design and Construction
CP42  -  Flood Risk
CP43  -  Natural Resources
CP44  -  Landscape
CP45  -  Green Infrastructure
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity

Saved policies Local Plan 2011:

DC3  -  Design against crime
DC5  -  Access
DC6  -  Landscaping
DC7  -  Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9  -  The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
DC20  -  External Lighting
H23  -  Open Space in New Housing Development
HE9  -  Archaeology
HE10  -  Archaeology
HE11  -  Archaeology
NE9  -  The Lowland Vale

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 2

A publication draft of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 has been 
subject to public consultation and Examination.  Its policies are a material 
consideration although full weight cannot be given to them at present.  The 
following policies are material to the consideration of this application:

DP2 - Space Standards
DP8 - Community Services and Facilities
DP16 - Access
DP17 - Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
DP20 - Public Art
DP21 - External Lighting
DP23 - Impact of Development on Amenity
DP24 - Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments
DP25 - Noise Pollution
DP26 - Air Quality
DP27 - Land Affected By Contamination
DP28 - Waste Collection and Recycling
DP33 - Open Space
DP34 - Leisure and Sports Facilities
DP36 - Heritage Assets

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

DP39 - Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments

Neighbourhood plan

In 2016, the independent examiner inspecting the Wantage Neighbourhood 
Plan recommended that the plan shouldn’t proceed to a referendum. A revised 
neighbourhood plan has yet to be submitted.  Accordingly, no weight can be 
given to this plan.

Adopted Guidance

Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD – March 2015
Developer Contributions SPD – June 2017

Other Relevant Legislation and Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework 2018
National Planning Practice Guidance
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 
Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Obligations under Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998
Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010
Localism Act (including New Homes Bonus)
Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000

Author:          Stuart Walker
Contact No:   01235 422600
Email:            planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Page 17

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Appendix 1

P
age 18



P
age 19



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2049/FUL
SITE Land at Park Farm East Challow
PARISH East Challow
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)

Residential development comprising the 
erection of 87 dwellings including associated 
amenity space, access, parking and ancillary 
development
Yvonne Constance

APPLICANT Crest Nicholson (Chiltern)
CASE OFFICER Adrian Butler

This application is presented to planning committee because:

1. There are Parish Council objections that are contrary to the officer’s 
recommendation that cannot be resolved by condition or negotiation; 
and:

Officers seek the opinion of Planning Committee on the following in case 
any refusal of planning permission is appealed.

2. In permitting a previous application for housing on the site Planning 
Committee imposed a condition requiring a signalised crossing on the 
A417 instead of a zebra crossing originally proposed and now proposed 
by the highway authority. Do Planning Committee require a signalised 
crossing?

3. Planning Committee imposed a condition requiring more unallocated 
car parking spaces, contrary to officer advice. Do Planning Committee 
consider adequate parking is now provided or should additional 
unallocated parking be provided which could be secured by condition?

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is refused for the following 
reasons:

1. The proposal fails to provide an adequate amount and mix of 
affordable housing on the site to meet objectively identified need in 
the district. As such the proposal is contrary to core policies 22 
and 24 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1.

2. The proposal is considered a poorly designed, cramped and 
congested scheme that is highway and parking dominated; lacks 
appropriate focal points, adequate street landscaping, attractive 
public open spaces and results in inadequate living conditions for 
future residents. As such the proposal does not deliver a high 
quality and sustainable development and is therefore, contrary to 
core policies 37, 38 and 44 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031 Part 1, saved policies H23 and DC9 of the Local Plan 2011, the 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

adopted Vale of White Horse Design Guide 2015 and paragraphs 
117, 118, 122(e), 124, 127, 128, 130 and 131 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

3. In the absence of a s.106 agreement relating to the provision of 
affordable housing and financial contributions towards 
maintenance of a zebra crossing on the A417 and associated public 
consultation, public transport improvements including improved 
bus services through East Challow and bus stop provision, travel 
plan monitoring, changes to the speed limit on the A417, public art, 
street naming, waste bin provision, and the management of public 
open spaces and play areas, the proposal would place 
unacceptable pressure on these facilities and fail to provide the 
social and recreational services to serve the development. This is 
considered contrary to core policies 7 and 24 of the Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policies DC4, DC7 and H23 of 
the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011, and paragraph 54 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

1.0 The Proposal and Site Description
1.1 The application site forms part of an area on which the council has 

permitted 88 dwellings. That development has commenced. The 
description of development on the submitted application form refers to 
the erection of 87 dwellings. Other information submitted with the 
application including the figures provided in response to part 16 of the 
application form, refer to or add up to 114 dwellings, this figure being 
reached due to the addition of 27 dwellings permitted on land 
immediately west of the application site. However, given the description 
of development and the number of dwellings within the red line 
application site officers have treated this application as seeking 
permission for 87 dwellings.

1.2 Based on the submitted plans and confirmed through supplementary 
information, this application proposes 62 market dwellings and 25 
affordable dwellings.

1.3 Vehicular access is proposed from the A417. Access is to be in the 
form of a staggered priority junction including a right hand turn lane into 
the site and to Letcombe Hill which is indirectly opposite.  The access 
arrangements were approved as part of an application for 88 dwellings 
on the site and adjacent land. 

1.4 The site location is shown on the plan below. The land falls from south 
to north. North of the site are in part dwellings and in part open fields. 
The western boundary borders existing housing and land that has 
planning permission for housing. The A417 forms the southern 
boundary with fields beyond. A house and open fields form the eastern 
boundaries. A public footpath adjoins the north and east boundaries to 
the site. A site location plan is shown below and attached as Appendix 
1 at the end of this report:

Page 21



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

1.5 The site layout is shown in the image below and also attached as 
Appendix 1 to the report:

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS AND 
REPRESENTATIONS ON CURRENT SUBMISSION

2.1 A summary of the responses received to the current proposal is below.  
A full copy of all the comments made can be seen online at 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

East Challow Parish Council
Object:

Page 22

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

Design and Access:
 The NPPF 2018 advises that the building of high quality housing with 

good design is key to a sustainable development; this application 
totally fails this criterion. The developer is attempting to pack as many 
houses as possible onto the site for its maximum profit with no 
thought for house occupants and its rural location.

 Access is on a bend at the top of a steep hill. Removing the 
roundabout previously permitted will cause problems for users of the 
A417 and especially villagers on the west side of the A417

 Inappropriate scheme for a rural site
 Densely packed development with small gardens 
 Pushed the development against an adjoining property (Greenacres)
 Loss of public open space compared to the approved scheme
 Car parking dominates the scheme
 Lack of visitor parking spaces
 The roads appear narrow and could make emergency vehicle access 

difficult
 The wrong sized bin lorry has been used on the drawings

Sustainability
 The village has no shops
 The limited bus service is not suitable for commuting. A local 

shopping bus service no longer runs due to financial cuts
 Services in Wantage are beyond reasonable walking distance
 No cycle path and cycling on the A417 is dangerous 
 Future residents will be reliant on cars and this will add to existing 

congestion
 Little employment in the village
 Health services are stretched, and doctors’ and dentists are full
 Limited recreational facilities and lack of funding to improve them

Transport and Traffic
 No proposal to amend the access
 Congestion at the top of the hill with the site access opposite 

Letcombe Hill which serves most houses in the village
 Potential for accidents is high. There have been two serious 

accidents less than 100m from the site access
 Speeding traffic as sped limits are nor monitored
 The application does not include any re-evaluation of traffic 

generation

Water and Sewage
 Thames Water advises there is an inability for their network to 

accommodate the proposal
 The village suffers with low water pressure

Affordable Housing
 The application is confusing with figures including the application site 

and land not within the site

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

Other Matters
 East Challow is incorrectly designated as a large village in the Local 

Plan but since that allocation it has lost facilities including the 
children’s nursery, pub, library service and it now has a reduced bus 
service. This designation error as led to the village being 
overdeveloped

 The application is outside the built-up area of the village and contrary 
to the Local Plan

 The district council has an 8.4-year housing land supply and 
therefore, the proposal is not needed

 The developer has made no effort to consult with the village
 The applicant’s highway consultant has failed to provide June traffic 

survey data
 Detrimental impact on the character of the village

Wantage Town Council
Note the objections raised

Councillor Constance
Object:

 Supports the comments made by local residents
 This application is presented as still for 87 houses, but it is actually for 

27 as on the original plan, PLUS 87 on the new plan – a total of 114
 They have split the site and seem to be trying to get past residents 

with a bluff that it is still only 87 houses
 I assume they can split the site (they can apply to do anything) but 

surely they must make a new application for the ‘original’ 27 and 
reveal that they are asking for 114 now?

 Development is right up to the boundary with the A417 preventing 
planting of big trees to soften the impact on the setting

 Impact on sewage/drainage already under strain
 Should provide car parking for the neighbours
 Destroy the rural approach to East Challow from Wantage.

Local residents and interest groups
12 letters of objection have been received. The concerns expressed may be 
summarised as:

 The proposal will increase the number of dwellings on this site to 114, 
as 27 dwellings would remain as permitted by earlier applications

 Overdevelopment of the site
 Local infrastructure is insufficient to support the proposal, as the 

school is at capacity, there is no medical provision, little social 
provision and employment in the area. The nursey school and public 
house have closed. There is no village shop. There has been a recent 
reduction in bus services. This is an unsustainable proposal

 It is not an accessible site. Residents will be reliant on their cars to 
drive to Wantage for shopping and services

 A417 is overburdened and unsuitable for increased traffic and for 
cycling to Wantage

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

 St Nicholas Primary School lacks physical capacity to provide 
additional school places needed

 The proposal should provide improved facilities
 Increased number of dwellings erodes the identity of the village
 Loss of an important open gap contrary to saved policy NE10
 Proposal is not part of the housing supply identified by the Local Plan
 The site remains a greenfield site, as development has not 

commenced
 The applicant’s traffic survey and conclusions are inaccurate in not 

reflecting traffic amounts and speeds
 A roundabout would be a safer junction
 Speeding traffic on the A417 is a danger
 Increase queuing traffic on the A417 and Letcombe Hill
 Entry and exit to and from the proposed access onto a blind uphill 

bend will be dangerous
 Increased traffic at a dangerous junction will endanger pedestrians 

especially school children crossing the A417
 Increase accident risks for those using the Letcombe Hill access
 The cumulative effects of the history of the development and in the 

village need to be considered
 A 30m gap between proposed houses in earlier schemes and 

Greenacre has now been reduced to 7m. Plots 58 - 61 are too close 
and will result in a loss of privacy with first floor lounge windows 
looking directly into the rear garden. 

 Likewise plots 92-96 which are 5-terraced dwellings will be 20m from 
the western boundary of Greenacre and directly facing the garden

 The north and west boundary of Greenacre will be surrounded by 
parking resulting in noise and pollution

 Loss of green space
 Lack of visitor parking spaces – it seems only two are proposed 
 Increased on street parking
 Thames Water has stated it does not have the capacity this is 

reflected by low pressure within the village already
 Not convinced the sewage system can cope
 The roads seem to be very narrow and on street parking could 

prevent access for emergency services  
 Proposal is not integrated with the village
 Increased traffic noise and disturbance
 Previous objections remain valid
 Lack of community consultation by the applicant
 The proposal and previous applications for the staggered junction 

seek to limit the costs of the applicant
 The proposal should provide new facilities including a pre-school and 

a shop
 Set a precedent for increased development on adjacent land at 

Challow Park

Should permission be granted one local resident requests the following 
(although that person’s objections which are included in the summary above 
still remain):

Page 25



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

 Provide safe road crossing points and sidewalks with railings
 Provide traffic calming at the foot of Letcombe Hill
 Provide adequate on site visitor parking 
 Provide adequate play spaces
 Provide appropriate landscaping

Harwell Campus Bicycle Users Group suggest the following (although their 
objections which are included in the summary above still remain):

 s106/s278 monies should be directed towards A417 safety 
improvements and/or alternative cycle routes in to Wantage

 Early provision of a Wantage north-western link road will help divert 
through traffic including that from this development, away from 
Wantage.

Oxfordshire County Council
Highways and Drainage
No objection

 114 dwellings would use the access rather than the current permitted 
88 dwellings. This increase would result in 14 additional vehicle 
movements during the AM and PM peaks

 The proposed access arrangements have already been permitted 
under application no. P17/V2884/FUL

 The overall layout is well formed and should be effective in ensuring 
low vehicle speeds

 The end parking space for plot 62 would be very inconvenient to 
manoeuvre in and out of; it is likely that reversing along the road 
would result. The layout could be improved to avoid this

 Parking spaces are demarked with Plot numbers although many are 
situated adjacent to the street carriageway. It is not clear how the use 
of these spaces would be controlled.

 Do not object to the raised tables at access road junctions although it 
seems that the benefit of them at some of the minor junctions within 
the site might be reconsidered

 Depending upon the carriageway configuration, the access 
arrangements for parking for Plots 55, 57, 113 and 114 may not be 
satisfactory. Over-running of footway areas or soft verges would not 
be acceptable.

 Four unallocated parking spaces does not conform to parking 
standards. More unallocated parking should be provided

 A 30mph speed limit should replace the existing 40mph speed limit 
on the A417

 A controlled Zebra type crossing would be required on the A417 with 
the location to be agreed

 Two new bus stops will be required on the A417 with their positions to 
be agreed

Conditions
1. Site access to be implemented prior to the construction of any 

dwelling
2. Any existing access to be stopped up

Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

3. Visibility splays in accordance with approved plans
4. A route for pedestrians and cyclists from the site to the A417 to be 

approved
5. Residential Travel Plan to be agreed
6. Residential Travel Information pack to be provided
7. No changes to or obstruction of the adjacent public right of way
8. Construction traffic management plan needed
9. Surface water drainage scheme to be agreed

Drainage
No objection

 Flood zone 1 with a low risk of flooding
 Coherent drainage pipe network is shown

Archaeology
No objection

 There are no significant archaeological constraints.

Education
Comments

 The proposed development will impact on the sufficiency of school 
places and based on current information there will be insufficient 
capacity at each and all categories of education provision, namely 
early years provision, primary, secondary and special schools in the 
area to meet the demands arising from the proposed development.

 The local education authority is seeking to provide additional suitable, 
permanent school accommodation to mitigate the cumulative impact 
of this and other developments, alongside expected population 
growth.

 The County Council will use the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
to mitigate the impacts on Windmill Nursery School, St Nicholas 
Primary School and towards secondary school provision at the Grove 
Airfield site.

Housing Team
Comments

 35% affordable housing is needed which equates to 30.5 dwellings. 
Expect 30 dwellings to be delivered on site with a financial 
contribution for the 0.5 ‘part’ unit.

 75% should be for rent and 25% shared ownership
 Government Welfare reform introduced since the production of the 

SHMA, has seen a significant increase in the demand for two-
bedroom accommodation for rent with a reduction in demand for 
larger rented family homes due to the changes in eligibility for 
Housing Benefit. 

 The demand for two-bedroom shared ownership properties is much 
higher than for one-bedroom properties, therefore the overall 
affordable housing mix may be more suitably delivered with a higher 
proportion of two-bedroom properties than is indicated in the SHMA 
guidance.

Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

 In general, it is anticipated that the mix of affordable housing should 
reflect the significant demand for two-bedroom units for both rented 
and shared ownership tenures with a reduction in one-bedroom 
accommodation and an adjustment to the number of larger homes.

 Recommend the following affordable housing mix (based on the need 
for 30 affordable dwellings):

1 bed  2 bed 3 bed (5 
person)

3 bed (6 
person)  

Affordable rented 2 16 4 1
Shared ownership 0 5 2 0

 All two-bedroom units should be delivered as houses.
 Advice provided on minimum sizes.
 Parking courts should be avoided with parking provided on plot or 

adjacent to the dwellings.
 Affordable housing needs to be evenly distributed across the site 

which will help with making it indistinguishable from the market 
dwellings.

Thames Water
Waste
No objection with regard to foul water sewage network infrastructure 
capacity provided surface waters are not discharged to the public network.

Water
Thames Water has identified an inability of the existing water network 
infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this development proposal.

Condition
 No properties shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided 

that either: all water network upgrades required to accommodate the 
additional flows from the development have been completed; or a 
housing and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with 
Thames Water to allow additional properties to be occupied. Where a 
housing and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed, occupation shall 
be in accordance with that approved scheme.

Drainage Engineer
No objection
This is subject to drainage conditions being applied as per the original 
application.
Conditions

 Surface and foul water drainage schemes to be approved.

Countryside Officer
No objection

 Provided the ecological mitigation measures outlined in the original 
consent for this site are observed in full for the current scheme then 
there should be no harm to protected species. The site has been 
cleared of great crested newts under licence and provided the 

Page 28



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

mitigation fencing remains in place for the duration of the 
development works there should be no harm to the species.

 Overall, the ecological value of the site at present is very low, the 
changes to the proposals for the eastern part of the site would not 
result in any significant negative losses for biodiversity. As a whole 
the site can still deliver a small net gain in biodiversity in accordance 
with policy CP46 of the Local Plan.

Conservation Officer
Support

 The appearance, landscaping, scale and layout for the development 
are acceptable in conservation and design terms. 

 Generally, the materials and contextual setting respond well to 
historic housing stock in the settlement. 

 The landscaping details provided will retain the rural setting.
 Support the proposal, subject to variation on roofing materials with 

both grey slate tiles and red clay tiles to be used.

Landscape Officer
Comments
Generally satisfied with the proposals, but there are a few matters that need 
addressing:

 There has been a reduction in the amount of street tree planting, this 
is important as it breaks up the built mass of the development as it 
rises up the slope and breaks up the mass of development on the 
street scene. Areas of issue include the loss of tree planting plots 86, 
87 and 103, replacement of trees required. Tree planting required 
between plots 21 and 22, between parking spaces 36 and 37, 
adjacent to 47.

 A Landscape Maintenance and Management Plan is required to 
ensure the long-term establishment and management of the 
proposed vegetation and LAP

 Street lights should be plotted on the planting plans, as there are a 
number of places where street lights are proposed within 10m of 
proposed tree locations which will cause issues with Highways 
Adoption. Street lighting should be adjusted at this stage to prevent 
additional tree planting being lost.

 Seats should be provided within the areas of POS associated with the 
proposed pedestrian routes.

 Details of design of the LAP will required but can be covered by 
condition.

 The central POS, there should be space to walk around the pond 
area, this layout stops connectivity on the eastern side of the pond.

 The proposed mounds in the southern POS should be removed. On 
the steep slope they will appear out of context and restrict the wider 
use of the POS.

 As design for the LAP will be required, it may be that some mounding 
is used to increase play value.

 The previous scheme had several high retaining walls to 
accommodate the level changes with walls 2.6m and 2m in height 
proposed. These walls also had 1.8m high close board fencing 

Page 29



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

proposed. Reducing the height of the proposed fencing or having a 
combination of fencing and trellis would reduce the additional impact 
of the fencing on top of the retaining walls. The submitted information 
does not cover the garden levels, slope gradients, the location or 
proposed height of retaining walls.

 Excessive amount of knee railing proposed in central POS. The use 
of vegetation, street furniture or more attractive boundary detail 
should replace the knee rail.

Urban Design Officer
Comments:

 The overall principals demonstrated through the layout are 
acceptable. The principals of the masterplan respond well to the site 
context.

 The overall level of connectivity for the scheme is proportional to its 
ability to stitch into the surroundings utilising the adjacent public rights 
of way effectively. The footpath connections to adjacent public right of 
way could be placed better within the landscape strategy with a 
desire line from the LAP used to connect across the open green 
space. Also, the path adjacent to plot 28 should be moved away from 
its curtilage.

Key issues to be resolved or mitigated:
 Vernacular and built form is contextually relevant, but proportional 

application of Tudor timber could be considered. The presence of 
mock Tudor beams needs a rational for its use across house types. 
The vernacular as proposed would be successful in terms of a 
desirable and has a formality to its style with a degree of attraction to 
occupants, there may be a consideration for the use of Tudor timber 
to be proportional. Consider switching out some instances for a 
simpler cross beam with should retain a rural vernacular. 

 Terraced rows running over the gradient will have a broken ridge line 
and roof form. This may present a poor visual continuity.

 Built form and plots, garden sizes should be offset via an approach to 
design quality as uplift where sizes are not complaint, specifically on 
affordable units.

 Affordable housing, whilst slightly clustered and discernible by unit 
form (terraced and semi-detached within a compact street scene and 
frontage parking or adjacent continual parallel parking), is policy 
compliant. No units are clustered in numbers greater than 15 units. 

 A schedule of garden sizes should also be provided, as some 
gardens are below design guidance.

 There is an approach to be taken which seeks to mitigate/offset the 
loss of quality against explicit compliance with policy with one aspect 
of a properties design, to increase its overall qualitative value from a 
design standpoint. These uplifts in value should be sought and 
achieved through ‘quick wins’ with a relatively minimal impact when 
compared to adjusting larger design principles of the scheme. 
Additional design values which do not impact the current rational of 
the layout of the scheme could achieve this including:

Page 30



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

o Methodologies and designs for refuse storage and movement. 
Where can alternative movement be presented as to avoid 
alleyways?

o Structured on plot (frontage) landscaping and boundary 
treatments.

o Can storage be integrated into frontage boundary treatments?
o A form a structured landscaping be applied to add quality to 

the plots garden.
o Can landscaping and planting be delivered with smaller 

gardens prior to occupation.?
 Boundary treatments - instances of continuation based on existing 

treatment are required.
 Boundary treatments and how they work with side and rear curtilages 

of blocks and plots may need some attention; there are instances of 
long boundary walls looking over open space, this can appear hard 
within the landscape; suggest the continuation of hedge planting to 
soften their impact.

 Materials
o Grey concrete roof tiles (manufactured, plastic tonality, slightly 

shinny when wet)
o Consider changing to a clay, with reduced timber beaming?
o Tree planting on streets, particularly around parking needs 

improving as tree planting within the built form is lacking.
o Larger groups of parking spaces need breaking up with 

landscaping. This would need to be a proportional response as 
not to disrupt the successful principals of the layout.

o Ensure no additional loss of tree planting within the scheme.
 Conclusion:

o Could support this application if the key issues discussed were 
considered to and where possible mitigated through the 
illustrative design.

Environmental Protection Team (noise)
No objection

 Traffic noise will impact properties close to the A417. The noise 
assessment submitted in support of the application indicates that the 
site could be suitable for residential development with the correct 
orientation of buildings and gardens and the implementation of other 
mitigation measures.

Condition
 Prior to the start of construction works the developer shall submit a 

noise mitigation scheme for approval by the local planning authority. 
Thereafter the approved scheme shall be implemented in full and so 
maintained.

Air Quality
No objection

 The air quality assessment submitted does not anticipate that air 
quality standards are likely to be breached in this area. However, the 
additional traffic associated with any approved development will have 
some impact on air quality. To offset this, it is recommended that 

Page 31



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

each property with dedicated off-street parking is provided with 
charging points for electrical vehicles.

Contaminated Land
No objection

 The Preliminary Geotechnical and Contamination report submitted 
has not identified the presence of any significant contamination that 
would preclude the development of the site.

 The report does highlight that carbon dioxide has been identified 
within the region of the historic pond. The monitoring undertaken to 
date does not currently comply with CIRIA C665/Ground Gas 
Handbook and further gas monitoring should be carried out at the site 
to improve confidence in the gas assessment and to confirm the 
requirements for any gas protection measures.

Conditions
 Phased risk assessment
 Implementation of any remediation strategy.

Leisure Team
No objection

 Would like the developer to achieve as many of the ten principles of 
the Sport England Active Design guide as possible where relevant to 
optimise opportunities for active and healthy lifestyles.

Waste Management
Comment

 The refuse vehicle used in the tracking plan is smaller than the 
council’s fleet. Re-tracking is needed using the council’s vehicle 
details.

Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group
Object

 Large scale housing across the district is putting pressure on already 
overstretched health services.

(Officer note: the council’s Developer Contributions SPD expects increased 
capacity at existing health care facilities to be funded by CIL. On site 
provision (which is not proposed) and /or extensions to heath care facilities 
will be secured through s106 contributions).

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P18/V1100/FUL - Approved (18/07/2018)

Temporary Access Associated with Archaeology and Site Investigation 
Works on Land at Park Farm, East Challow

3.2 P18/V0744/RM - Reserved Matters application following Outline 
Approval P16/V0652/O (as varied by application no. P17/V2884/FUL) 
for the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale. Development of up 
to 88 dwellings including 40% affordable housing, landscaping and 
other associated works with all matters reserved except for access. - 
Approval of Reserved Matters on 01/06/2018

Page 32



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

3.3 P17/V2884/FUL - Approved (15/03/2018). Variation of Conditions 9, 10, 
11 and 15 and removal of Condition 8 of P16/V0652/O (as amended 18 
January 2018). This application permitted a right hand turn lane into the 
site instead of a roundabout previously approved under the original 
outline permission.

3.4 P16/V0652/O - Approved (27/10/2016). Development of up to 88 
dwellings including 40% affordable housing, landscaping and other 
associated works with all matters reserved except for access.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA)
4.1 The proposal comprises fewer than 150 dwellings but the site exceeds 

5ha in size and is therefore, above the thresholds set in Schedule 2 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017. A screening opinion has been undertaken and it is 
considered the proposal does not constitute development that requires 
environmental impact assessment.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The main planning considerations are: 

1. The principle of development
2. Housing mix
3. Coalescence of Settlements
4. Design of the development
5. Residential amenity
6. Highway impact
7. CIL and Financial Contribution Requests

The Principle of Development
5.2 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

requires applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 provides that the local planning authority shall have regard to 
the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 
application, and to any other material considerations.

5.3 In this case the Development Plan currently comprises the adopted 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1) and the saved 
policies of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 (LP 2011).

5.4 For this site the approach to the principle of new residential 
development is defined by core policies 3, 4 and 20 of LPP1. The 
overall spatial strategy of the development plan is to provide 
development within the built-up area of market towns, local service 
centres and larger villages.

5.5 Core policy 3 of LPP1 sets out the settlement hierarchy and identifies 
three sub-area strategies. It designates East Challow as a larger village 
within the Western Vale Sub-Area. The more recent loss of village 
facilities does not change the planning policy designation.

Page 33



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

5.6 Core policy 4 of LPP1 specifies the scale and location of housing and 
confirms development outside the existing built area of these 
settlements will be permitted if it is allocated by the Local Plan or has 
been allocated within an adopted neighbourhood plan or future parts of 
the Local Plan. The policy also makes clear that development in open 
countryside will not be appropriate unless specifically supported by 
other relevant policies set out in the development plan or national 
policy.

5.7 Core policy 20 of LPP1 sets out the spatial strategy for the Western 
Vale Sub-Area. It identifies the strategic housing site allocations for the 
area and confirms development within the Sub-Area should be in 
accordance with the settlement hierarchy of core policy 3.

5.8 The site is not allocated for development in the development plan and 
is not allocated for development in any emerging plan. East Challow 
does not have a defined settlement boundary.  Whether a particular 
site is within the built-up area is a matter of judgement on an individual 
basis.  Officers consider the site is outside the existing built up area of 
the village and is open countryside for planning purposes. Its 
development for housing is therefore in conflict with the development 
plan.

5.9 Notwithstanding this, planning permission exists for 88 dwellings on the 
application site and an area to the north west (shown edged blue on 
the application plan (application numbers P17/V2884/FUL and 
P18/V0744/RM)). Work associated with these applications has 
commenced. This planning history is a material planning consideration.

5.10 The 88 dwellings proposal was granted when the council could not 
demonstrate a five-year housing supply. The permission was granted 
as it was considered the benefits outweighed the harm. The 88 
dwellings have been accounted for in the Council’s housing trajectory.

5.11 Had there been no recent planning history for housing on this site the 
development would not be acceptable. However, there is a realistic fall-
back position with the implementation of an existing permission, and 
this holds weight in the consideration of this application. 

Housing Mix
Affordable housing

5.12 Core policy 24 of LPP1 seeks 35% affordable housing on all sites 
capable of a net gain of eleven or more dwellings. A tenure split of 75% 
rented and 25% intermediate housing is also expected by core policy 
24. 

5.13 Twenty-five affordable dwellings are proposed. This does not amount 
to 35% affordable housing being a shortfall of over 5 affordable 
dwellings which is contrary to core policy 24. Furthermore, the tenure 
split proposed is not a 75%:25% split. The proposal is contrary to core 
policy 24 of LPP1.

Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

5.14 The applicant seeks to justify the shortfall by explaining that the total 
number of affordable dwellings proposed comprises 25 affordable 
dwellings on the application site plus 15 affordable dwellings permitted 
on adjacent land (the blue edged land) which forms part of the 88 
dwelling scheme permitted under application numbers P17/V2884/FUL 
and P18/V0744/RM. The applicant advises this would then total 40 
affordable dwellings across the two sites and provide 35% affordable 
housing.

5.15 Officers consider this is not acceptable. The 15 affordable dwellings 
permitted on the blue edged land are not within current application site. 
Even if the 15 affordable dwellings within the blue edged land were 
accepted as contributing towards the affordable housing a shortfall 
would still result. This is because at the time of granting planning 
permission for the 88 dwellings the adopted policy required 40% 
affordable housing. Provision of 40% affordable housing on the site 
had weighed heavily in the benefits of that proposal and I would not 
have recommended approval had that application proposed less than 
40% affordable housing. 40% affordable housing would still apply to 
the blue edged land. 

5.16 A combination of 40% and 35% affordable housing amounts to a total 
of 41.25 affordable dwellings being required across the two sites 
(application site and the blue edged land). The applicant’s case that 40 
affordable dwellings are provided across the two sites still results in an 
unjustified shortfall of affordable housing.

Affordable Housing Unit Mix
5.17 Core policy 22 of LPP1 requires:

“A mix of dwelling types and sizes to meet the needs of current and 
future households will be required on all new residential developments. 
This should be in accordance with the Council’s current Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment unless an alternative approach can be 
demonstrated to be more appropriate through the Housing Register or 
where proven to be necessary due to viability constraints”.

5.18 A tenure split of 75% rented and 25% intermediate housing is expected 
by core policy 24. 

5.19 As explained above the applicant has proposed 25 affordable dwellings 
which is less than the 35% policy expectation. The affordable housing 
unit size mix proposed by the developer is shown in the table below. 
Advice from the council’s housing team has been sought on an 
appropriate affordable housing mix based 25 affordable dwellings and 
based on up to date need through the housing register. This is also 
shown in the table overleaf. 

Page 35



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

No. of 
bed 

spaces

1-bed 2-bed 3-bed (5 
person)

3-bed (6 
person)

Tenure 
split %

Rent 4 6 4 1 60%Proposed
S/O 0 6 0 4 40%

Rent 4 10 3 2 76%Housing 
team S/O 0 4 0 2 24%

5.20 The applicant has not provided any justification for the proposed 
affordable housing size or tenure mixes. The proposal is therefore, 
contrary to core policies 22 and 24 of LPP1.

5.21 Without prejudice to comments made in this report, the affordable 
housing unit size and tenure mixes based on the applicant’s case of 
providing 40 affordable dwellings across the application site and the 
blue edged land is set out below. The table also includes the unit size 
mix that the council’s housing team would expect to see based on the 
housing register need if this scenario were to be accepted:

No. of 
bed 
spaces

1-bed 2-bed 3-bed 
(5 

person)

3-bed 
(6 

person)

Tenure 
Mix (%)

Rent 4 19 6 0 72.5%Proposed
S/O 0 6 5 0 27.5%

Rent 4 18 6 2 75%Housing 
team S/O 0 6 4 0 25%

5.22 The applicant has provided no justification for this variance. The mix 
does not provide a 75%:25% split either. Whichever way affordable 
housing is assessed, the application fails to provide a scheme that is 
compliant with core policies 22 and 24 of the LPP1.

Market Housing
5.23 The market housing unit size mix proposed (based on 62 dwellings) 

and compared to the SHMA estimate is shown in the table below:

No. of beds 1 2 3 4+
Proposed 0 18 22 22

SHMA 
estimate

3.7 13.4 26.4 18.5

5.24 The SHMA text acknowledges that the dwelling mixes it identifies are 
an estimate of need. The SHMA also adds that in applying the 
estimates to individual sites regard should be given to the nature of the 
development site and character of the area. It also recognises that the 
‘market’ is to some degree a better judge of what is the most 
appropriate profile of market homes to deliver at any point in time. The 
market housing mix needs to be considered against this background.

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

5.25 The applicant has not provided any evidence to justify the market 
housing mix. The market housing mix permitted for the extant scheme 
of 88 dwellings was closer to the SHMA mix with the exception of 4+ 
bedroom houses.

Coalescence of Settlements
5.26 Saved policy NE10 of the LP 2011 designates the site as part of an 

important open gap between East Challow and Wantage. In granting 
outline permission for housing on this site policy NE10 was considered 
to restrict housing development and given the then lack of a five-year 
housing land supply, greater weight was given to the NPPF. These 
circumstances no longer apply and full weight can be applied to policy 
NE10 of the LP 2011. However, a material consideration is the extant 
planning permission for housing on this land which if constructed would 
have a similar impact in the gap.

5.27 Previously the site was considered to have a limited role in the open 
space between the settlements of East Challow and Wantage, as the 
site is not prominent in views of the land that forms the gap. Land to 
the east was considered to play a more significant role when seen from 
public vantage points. The permission for 88 dwellings on the site 
provided open spaces to the eastern boundary that adjoins fields and 
these are retained in this latest scheme.  

5.28 Two dwellings (plots 48 and 49) encroach into the gap in comparison to 
the approved scheme. However, this encroachment is limited and 
insufficient to cause harm given the line of housing permitted at the 
eastern boundary to the site. In this case the impact for coalescence is 
considered acceptable given the fall back position. 

Design of the Development
5.29 Core policy 37 of the LPP1 expects all proposals for new development 

to be of high quality. To inform developers and as a tool for considering 
planning applications the council has an adopted Design Guide. 
Paragraph 124 of the NPPF advises that “the creation of high quality 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and 
development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of 
sustainable development creates better places in which to live and 
work and helps make development acceptable to communities”. The 
proposal does not represent good design.

5.30 Saved policy H23 of the LP 2011 expects sites such as this to provide 
at least 15% of the site as safe, attractive and convenient public open 
space. The scheme provides public open space in excess of the 15% 
requirement. The Design Guide (principle DG7) seeks to link existing 
and proposed landscapes and open spaces together to form open 
space networks. The permitted scheme linked the open spaces around 
the site creating an attractive route around it. However, this proposal 
narrows parts of the spaces and severs the link through the open 
spaces reducing its attractiveness.

Page 37



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

5.31 There is an increase in the number of smaller units compared to the 
permitted scheme and an increase in frontage/road side parking. The 
Design Guide seeks to ensure that roads and parking do not dominate 
the street scenes. The proposal does not meet this aim and this is not 
withstanding the highway officer advice that more unallocated parking 
could be provided. Frontage and street parking spoils focal points and 
views through the development and reduces parts of the open space 
creating a narrow, unattractive link. Some parking is divorced from the 
dwellings and in one instance forms the end point of a path through 
open space. This path also culminates in an unattractive focal point of 
a bin collection point. Parking limits spaces for tree planting and 
landscaping to soften street scenes. Parking becomes a focal point in 
parts of the scheme. 

5.32 The Design Guide provides guidance on garden sizes to provide 
reasonable amenity space for dwellings. Twenty-five of the dwellings 
have garden sizes smaller than the recommended guidelines. 

5.33 This scheme results in a cramped and congested layout with forms that 
results in poor design. The proposal:

 does not secure a well-designed, attractive and healthy place
 does not add to the overall quality of the area
 is not visually attractive as a result of good layout and appropriate 

and effective landscaping;
 is not sympathetic to local character and history, including the 

surrounding built environment 
 does not establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the 

arrangement of streets, spaces to create attractive, welcoming and 
a distinctive place to live, work or visit. 

5.34 The NPPF advises that local planning authorities should seek to 
ensure that the quality of approved development is not materially 
diminished between permission and completion, as a result of changes 
being made to the permitted scheme. In this case the council has 
permitted an acceptable scheme making effective use of the site 
whereas this proposal is materially diminished in its quality compared 
to the approved scheme. 

5.35 The proposal conflicts with the council’s design policies and guidance 
and guidance in the NPPF. 

5.36 The NPPF encourages applicants to work closely with those affected 
by their proposals to evolve designs that take account of the views of 
the community. Applications that can demonstrate early, proactive and 
effective engagement with the community should be looked on more 
favourably than those that cannot. This developer has not engaged 
with the local community.

5.37 All the dwellings are two storeys high and the house types or similar 
have already been permitted on the site. Their design is acceptable.

Page 38



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

Residential Amenity
5.38 The Design Guide recommends a minimum distance of 21m between 

facing habitable windows to prevent unreasonable overlooking. All the 
‘back to back’ distances from proposed dwellings to habitable rooms in 
existing dwellings adjacent to the site and proposed at Challow Park 
are over 21m (the closest being 33m from plot 48 to a permitted 
Challow Park dwelling). All proposed dwellings are 21m or more ‘back 
to back’.

5.39 Plots 58 to 61 are four flats in a single building immediately north of the 
rear garden of Greenacre. The proposed building is some 9m high to 
ridge, side on to and approximately 7.5m from the rear boundary of 
Greenacre, this distance being some 14m closer in comparison to the 
approved scheme. The upper floor of the south elevation of the 
proposed building includes a lounge window which will be at least 49m 
from the rear facing windows in Greenacre. Overlooking window to 
window is reasonable. There will be overlooking of the rear garden. 
The relevant flat has an alternative lounge window and a condition 
could require the south facing window at first floor level to be removed 
to ensure privacy in the rear garden of Greenacre. Being to the north of 
Greenacre it is not considered the flats will have an overbearing impact 
or result in unreasonable loss of light to the house or garden.

5.40 Plots 92 to 96 are a row of dwellings facing the rear garden of 
Greenacre and approximately 24m from the boundary. The approved 
scheme has two dwellings facing east towards Greenacre 
approximately 29m from the boundary. There will be increased 
overlooking and I am conscious that the living conditions of the 
residents of Greenacre will have changed considerably compared to its 
original freestanding position to one now surrounded by housing (with 
the permitted housing scheme to the west at Challow Park). There will 
be overlooking and the residents will perceive a loss of privacy. At 24m 
distance, proposed and existing planting in between and considering 
the guidance in the council’s Design Guide the resultant impact would 
not be unreasonable.

5.41 The proposal accords with saved policy DC9 of the LP 2011 in respect 
of neighbour impacts.

5.42 As pointed out above this proposal results in some 25 undersized 
gardens in comparison to the expectations of the Design Guide. The 
Design Guide also expects flats to have adequate amenity space which 
could be communal gardens. The Design Guide expects a ground floor 
flat to have private space to provide a defensible space between the 
dwelling and communal garden. The proposal fails to provide this 
which would result in a lack of privacy for the occupants of the ground 
floor flats contrary to the Design Guide (principle DG72). 

Page 39



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

Traffic, Highway Safety and Parking
5.43 The Parish Council and local residents reiterate their previous 

concerns with regard to the safety of the proposed access, traffic 
generation on the A417 and need for visitor parking. 

5.44 As Highway Authority, Oxfordshire County Council is an independent 
expert in highway matters and does not object to the proposal. It 
considers the increase in traffic from the uplift in dwellings which are 
predicted to amount to some 14 extra movements in the AM and PM 
peaks, is reasonable. The 88 dwelling scheme was predicted to 
generate 46 movements in the AM and PM peak hours. The traffic 
generation impact would not result in a severe impact on the road 
network and in the absence of an objection from the Highway Authority, 
officers consider it would difficult to defend such a position on appeal.

5.45 Furthermore, the Highway Authority points out that the access 
arrangement to the A417 has already been approved and, with the 
imposition of conditions requiring vision splays, it can be made safe. 

5.46 The proposal is therefore complaint with saved policy DC5 of the LP 
2011 in respect of highway safety and means of access

5.47 Core policy 35 of the LPP1 requires adequate car parking to be 
delivered on site in accordance with County Council standards. Each 
house is allocated at least two parking spaces which in some cases 
includes a garage. Each of the four flats has one allocated parking 
space and there are two visitor parking spaces indirectly opposite. 

5.48 The parking standards include a means for calculating unallocated 
parking. Based on each house having at least two allocated parking 
spaces and the flats one allocated parking spaces results in 36 
unallocated parking spaces being required. The proposal provides four 
unallocated parking spaces.

5.49 In permitting application no. P18/V0744/RM which related to the detail 
of the 88 dwellings permitted on the Park Farm site, Planning 
Committee imposed a condition requiring more unallocated parking. 
The highway authority advises the unallocated parking as proposed 
does not accord with standards and that more could be provided. 
Officers consider that whilst an extra 32 unallocated parking spaces 
could be provided it would be at the expense of design quality, by 
largely encroaching into the edges of the open spaces and in turn will 
result in parking further dominating the scheme and impacting on the 
streets and spaces contrary to core policy 37 of the LPP1 and the 
Design Guide. 

5.50 The parking standards allow flexibility recommending that the number 
of allocated spaces is chosen first, followed by the additional number of 
unallocated spaces, and when for reasons of good urban design more 
allocated spaces are provided than the standard amount (e.g. space in 
front of a garage for the reason of road safety) then the number of 
unallocated spaces may be reduced.

Page 40



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

5.51 In this case the proposal includes at least 215 allocated parking spaces 
(including garages). The parking standards require 170 allocated 
parking spaces and 36 unallocated spaces; a total of 206 parking 
spaces. The proposal provides in excess of this in allocated spaces.  
Applying the flexibility allowed by the parking standards it is considered 
parking is sufficient.

CIL and Financial Contribution Requests
5.52 The third reason for refusal is a technical one to allow the council to 

secure a s106 should a permission be subsequently granted at appeal. 

5.53 The application if approved would be subject to CIL which could 
generate some £1,278,221.96. (The 88 dwelling scheme would 
generate approximately £1,125,000 through s106 contributions). 
The CIL can be used towards infrastructure including education, 
leisure, recreation and sport, local community services and health care.

5.54 In addition to CIL and in accordance with the councils Developer 
Contributions SPD, should this scheme be permitted, the council would 
also seek financial contributions through a s106 agreement towards bin 
provision for each dwelling, public art, street naming and s106 
monitoring as follows:

District Council Amount (£)
Bin provision £14,790
Public art on site or in 
Shrivenham Parish

£26,100

Street naming of this 
development

£1,165.80

S106 monitoring fee £1,335

5.55 The s106 agreement would also be needed to secure the affordable 
housing and a sum for the ‘part affordable house’, and provision, 
management and maintenance of the public open spaces and the play 
area.

5.56 Oxfordshire County Council seek financial contributions towards 
highway safety and bus service improvements through the village. 
Their requests based on a September 2015 price base are as follows:

Oxfordshire County Council Amount (£)
Maintenance of a zebra crossing 
on the A417 and associated public 
consultation

£5,750

Change to the A417 speed limit 
between East Challow and 
Wantage from 40mph to 30mph

£2,500

Improvement of bus services 
between the site and surrounding 
areas of East Challow

£73,732.50

Page 41



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

Provision or improvement of two 
bus stops on the A417 in East 
Challow

£2,000

Travel plan monitoring £1,240

5.57 The contributions above are considered to accord with paragraph 56 of 
the NPPF which requires planning obligations to only be sought where 
they meet all the following tests: 

 Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms; 

 Directly related to the development; and
 Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 

development.

5.58 The County Council would also seek to secure a s278 Agreement 
under the Highways Act to secure the following (this council would also 
seek to secure the following by condition if permission was granted):

 access works comprising a staggered priority junction 
incorporating two ghosted right turning lanes

 associated carriageway works
 new footway 2.0 metres wide along east side of A417 to link with 

existing footway
 new footway 2.0 metres wide along north side of A417 to 

crossing and eastbound bus stop
 pedestrian guard-railing at Public Footpath 196/5
 new and widened footways, nominally 1.8 metres wide, along 

south side of A417 to King Alfred’s Academy School access
 pedestrian (Zebra type) crossing (I should point out that in 

approving application no. P17/V2884/FUL the planning 
committee required a signalised crossing instead of a zebra 
crossing)

 bus stop hard standings and markings.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 This application has been considered in accordance with the 

development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
 
6.2 Planning permission exists for 88 dwellings on this site and adjacent 

land to its west. A commencement of that development has begun 
giving the applicant a fall back position which is a material 
consideration. Had there been no recent planning history for housing 
on this site the development would not be acceptable in principle. 
However, there is a realistic fall-back position with the implementation 
of an existing permission, and this holds weight in the consideration of 
this application both in terms of principle of development and 
coalescence between settlements.

6.3 Having considered representations made on highway safety and traffic 
generation issues and bearing in mind that this authority has permitted 
the proposed staggered priority junction, there are no sound reasons 
for refusal on highway safety grounds. Traffic generation uplift over the 

Page 42



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

88 dwellings permitted is 14 vehicles in the AM and PM peaks and 
would not severely impact on the existing volume of traffic using the 
A417 or any other roads.

6.4 The applicant approached this authority for pre-application advice for a 
scheme amounting to an uplift over the whole Park Farm site to 118 
dwellings. In line with NPPF advice the applicant was encouraged to 
engage with the local community but has not done so. Issues 
associated with this application have been drawn to the applicant’s 
attention. The applicant has requested that the authority determine the 
application as submitted.

6.5 Planning officer pre-application advice was negative and the 
application has not overcome all officer concerns. The proposal 
conflicts with the council’s affordable housing policies. The scheme is 
poorly designed representing overdevelopment and creating poor living 
conditions for future residents. It lacks unallocated car parking which if 
provided would further undermine the poor quality of the proposal.  

6.6 The council is required to demonstrate a three-year housing land 
supply which it has. The council is actively seeking to meet that 
element of Oxford’s unmet housing need through the Local Plan 2031 
Part 2. Incidentally the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 does not expect the 
Western Vale sub-area to provide housing to meet Oxford’s unmet 
need. Full weight can be given to the development plan policies as they 
are up to date and accord with the NPPF. The proposal conflicts with 
development plan policies and there is no presumption in favour of it. 

6.7 It is recommended that this proposal is refused.

The following planning policies have been considered:

VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2031: PART 1 – CORE POLICIES 1, 
2, 3, 4, 7, 20, 22, 23, 24, 33, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46 and 47

VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2011 – SAVED POLICIES DC3, 
DC4, DC5, DC6, DC7, DC9, DC12, H23, HE4, HE9, HE10, NE6, NE9 and 
NE10

DRAFT VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2031 PART 2 –AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES CP4a, CP20a, DP2, DP16, DP20, DP21, 
DP23, DP25, DP26, DP27, DP28, DP29, DP31 DP33 DP36, DP38 and DP39

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DESIGN GUIDE 2015

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF)

NATIONAL PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE (NPPG)

Page 43



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report –  9 January 2019

STATEMENT BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR MINISTRY OF 
HOUSING, COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT DATED 12 
SEPTEMBER 2018 (HCWS955)

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY LEGISLATION

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS – DELIVERING INFRASTRUCTURE TO 
SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT – SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMANT 
– JUNE 2017

OXFORDSHIRE STRATEGIC HOUSING MARKET ASSESSMENT 2014 
(SHMA)

Case Officer – Adrian Butler
Email – adrian.butler@southandvale.gov.uk
Tel – (01235) 422600

Page 44



7

L

e

t
c

o

m

b

e

 
H

i
l
l

D

r
a

i
n

7

Mokundange

9

G

r
a

m

p

i
e

n

s

Shelter

Challow Park Studios

5

1
4

The Barn

1
6

V

i
v

a

n

n

a

W

i

l

l

o

w

6

The Park

1

1
1

1

87.2m

Hall

4

107.8m

1

A

 

4

1

7

Talbott Hall

The Park

LB

Lych Gate

H

E

D

G

E

 

H

I

L

L

 

R

O

A

D

The

2

St Nicolas Church

5

W

i
n

d

s

w

e

p

t

M

i
s

t

r

a

l

1
3

TCB

2

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

s

1

Pond

111.0m

MS

House

T
e
r
r
a
c
e

Park Farm

PH

1

1

P

a

t

h

Goodlake Arms

Challow Park

97.8m

A

 

4

1

7

Challow Lodge

Challow Park

H

i
g

h

 

B

a

n

k

G

a

b

l

e

 

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

H

i
d

e

-

a

-

w

a

y

P
a
r
k

1
5

C

h

i

l

d

r

e

y

 

W

a

y

 

(

P

a

t

h

)

P

o

s

t
s

2

1

0

Greenacre

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

East Challow

1

S
t
 
N

i
c
h
o
l
a
s
 
P

l

102.2m

4

Croft

Parkside

T
H

E
 
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

LB

This drawing is the copyright of Roberts Limbrick Ltd

and should not be reproduced in whole or in

part or used in any manner whatsoever without

their written permission.

Do Not scale off this drawing, use only figured

dimensions and report any discrepancies or

omissions to the Architect immediately.

project

client

drawing

scale

date author

rev. date description

project

status

drg no. rev.

Gloucester, GL1 1DG

T.   03333 405 500

mail@robertslimbrick.com

robertslimbrick.comwww.

Registered Office :   England  No. 06658029

ROBERTS LIMBRICK LTD

The Carriage Building, Bruton Way,

Newport, NP20 4PG

The Estates Office, 25 - 26 Gold Tops,

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

EAST CHALLOW

-

-

CREST NICHOLSON

SITE LOCATION PLAN

-

-

-

PLANNING

1:1250 @ A2

July 2018 -

9014 PL01 -

- - -

0

5 12.5 25 50 100m

Appendix 1

P
age 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



7
Letcombe Hill

Drain

7

Mokundange

9

Grampiens

Shelter

Challow Park Studios

5

14

The Barn

16

Vivanna

Willow

6

The Park

1

11

1

87.2m

Hall

4

107.8m

1

A 417

Talbott Hall

The Park

LB

Lych Gate

HEDG
E HILL RO

AD

The

2

St Nicolas Church

5

Windswept
Mistral

13

TCB

2

Cottages

1

Pond

111.0m

MS

House

Te
rra

ce

Park Farm

PH

1

1

Path

Goodlake Arms

97.8m

A 417

Challow Lodge

Challow Park

High Bank

Gable Cottage

Hide-a-way

Pa
rk

15

Childrey Way (Path)

Posts

2

10

Greenacre

Cottage

1

St N
icholas Pl

102.2m

4

Croft

Parkside

TH
E 

O
R

C
H

AR
D

LB

AFF2B4P
AS

AFF2B4P
AS

AFF2B4P
AS

AFF3B5P
ASAFF2B4P

O
PP

AFF2B4P
O

PP

AFF2B4P
AS

AFF2B4P
AS

AFF2B4P
OPP

AFF2B4P
OPP

HUNT-T2
AS

ELMS OPP

01

01

27 27

13
15

13
14

15

AFF3B5P
AS

03

03

03

03

02

02

02

AFF2B4P
AS

25

Pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r

Su
b 

St
at

io
n

Proposed
Sub

Station

Bin
Collection

Point

08

26
27

12
12

14

HUNT-T2
OPP

AFF2B4P
OPP

09

0908

SOM
E

OPP

ADDEROPP

01

01

KINGOPP

KI
N

G
AS

KI
N

G
O

PP

KINGAS

KINGOPP

CHUR OPP

25 25

26 26

02

03

04

06

07

26

27

19
18

19
18

17
17

16
16

08

09

101112

13

14

15

16

17

18

19 20 21 22 23 24

25
2424232322222121vis2020

10101111 09

AFF2B4P
O

PP
AFF2B4P

O
PP

06

06

06

06

07

07

07

07

04

04

05

05

05

05

04

WOLV AS

Proposed
Attenuation Feature

D
O

VE
D

AL
E

AS

Proposed
Attenuation

Feature

48

48

8989

8989

47

47

34

34

33

33

104

104

105

105

102

102

103

103

97

97101

101

84 84

28

28

28

28

98

98

44

44

43

43

43

43

42

42

42

42

41

41

41

41
40

40

40

40

39

39

112

112

112

112

109

109

110

110

Bin
Collection

Point

Proposed
LAP

Feature

6666
7575

28
29 30 31 32

33 34

35 36 37 38
39 40

41

42
43

44

45

46

47

Bin
Collection

Point

Key:
Rented Units (29No. Units)

Shared Ownership Units (11No. Units)

48
49

50515253

54

55

56

57

58-61

6263
64

6566

67

68

69

70

71

72

73747576

78

79

80

81

82

83

8485

88

89

90

91

92

93

95

96

9798
99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107
108

109

110
111

112
113

114

29

29 31

31

30

30

32

32

33

34

35 35 36 36
37 37 38 38

47

46

46

45

45

44

39

48

77

77

49
49

49

54

54

50

50

56

56

57

57

55

55

515152
525353

73

73

74

74

9090

65

65

66

67
67

68
68

71
71

72
72

75

58
59

60
61

64 64
63

63
62

62

84
83

83
82

82

79
79

78
78

85

85

111

110

109

108

107

107

105

104

103

102

101

100

100

99

99

98 97

8888

8888

vis

vis

Bin
Collection

Point

AREA PREVIOUSLY
APPROVED UNDER
APPLICATION No.

P18/V0744RM

91

91

91

76

76 76

86

86

114

111

111

8787

8787

77

86

87

94

95
95

96
96

949493939292

113

113

113

113

114

114

108

108

106

106

106

AH
2B AS

AH
2B AS

AH
2B

O
PP

AH
2B

O
PP

AH2B
AS AH2B

AS AH2B
AS AH2B

AS

AH
2B AS

AH
2B AS

AH
2B AS

AH
2B AS

AH
3B

6P
O

PP
AH

3B
6P

AS

AH3B6P
AS

AH3B6P
OPP

AH
3B

6P
AS

AH
3B

5P
AS

AH
3B

5P
AS

AH
3B

5P
O

PP
AH

3B
5P

O
PP

AD
D

E
O

PP

WOLV
AS

WOLV
OPP

WOLVOPP

CHUR
AS

C
H

U
R

O
PP

HUNT-T1OPP

CALDW
AS

C
ALD

W
O

PP

CALDW
OPP

CALDW
OPP

WALB-T2
OPP

W
AL

B-
T2

O
PP

WALB-T2 OPP

H
U

N
T-

T2
AS

H
U

N
T-T2

AS

H
U

N
T-T2

AS

H
U

N
T-

T2
O

PP

HART
AS

H
AR

T
AS

H
AR

T
O

PP

HART
OPP

HARTOPP

H
AR

T
AS

H
AR

T
AS

H
AR

T
O

PP

SO
M

E
AS

SO
M

E
AS

SOM
E

AS

SOME
AS

SO
M

E
O

PP

SO
M

E
O

PP

ELSE
ASELSE

OPP

ELSEAS

ELSEOPP

ELSEAS

ELSEOPP

ELSE AS

ELSE OPP

ELSE
AS ELSE

OPP

ELSE
AS

ELSE
OPP

ELMS
AS

ELMS
AS

ELMS
AS

ELM
S

AS

ELMS
AS

ELMS
AS

ELMS AS

ELMS
OPP

ELMS
OPP

ELMS
OPP

ELMS
OPP

ELMS
OPP

ELMS
OPP

ELM
S

O
PP

ELM
S

O
PP

ELM
S

O
PP

ELMS
OPP

ELMS OPP

70
69

69
70

visvi
s

8080

8181

- - -

This drawing is the copyright of Roberts Limbrick Ltd
and should not be reproduced in whole or in
part or used in any manner whatsoever without
their written permission.
Do Not scale off this drawing, use only figured
dimensions and report any discrepancies or
omissions to the Architect immediately.

project

client

drawing

scale

date author

rev. date description

project rev.

status

drg no.

Gloucester, GL1 1DG

T.   03333 405 500
mail@robertslimbrick.com

robertslimbrick.comwww.
Registered Office :   England  No. 06658029

ROBERTS LIMBRICK LTD

The Carriage Building, Bruton Way,

Newport, NP20 4PG
The Estates Office, 25 - 26 Gold Tops,

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
EAST CHALLOW
-
-

CREST NICHOLSON

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT
-
-
-

PLANNING

1:500 @ A0

July 2018 -

9014 PL03 A

LANDSCAPING INDICATIVE ONLY.
REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS
FOR MORE DETAILS.

P
age 46



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2481/FUL
SITE Abingdon School Faringdon Road Abingdon, 

OX14 1BQ
PARISH Abingdon
PROPOSAL Erection of a three-storey education building to 

accommodate a lodge, house rooms, computer 
science and economic teaching space. 
Corrected Ground Investigation Desk Study 
submitted 29 October 2018. Revised heritage 
statement and parking layout plan submitted 30 
November 2018.

WARD MEMBER(S) Monica Lovatt
Chris Palmer

APPLICANT Abingdon School
OFFICER Penny Silverwood

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the 
following planning conditions:

Standard
1. Commencement within three years.
2. Approved plans.

Prior to commencement
3. Submission of materials.
4. Submission of window and door details.
5. Submission of landscaping scheme.
6. Construction traffic management plan to be submitted.
7. Foul and surface water drainage details to be submitted.
8. Tree protection plan to be submitted.

Compliance
9. Implementation of landscaping scheme.

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to committee as it is a major application and 

Abingdon Town Council have objected.

1.2 The application relates to part of the Abingdon School campus located to the 
north of the centre of Abingdon. The application site is an area of the campus 
to the south of Faringdon Road to the east of the Yang Science Centre. It is 
currently occupied by a temporary building known as Faringdon Lodge. This 
temporary building benefited from temporary permission until 19th August 
2018. In the interest of expediency, the outcome of this current application is 
awaited before any enforcement action is considered. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2481/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

1.3 Access to the site is obtained from Faringdon Road to the north which serves 
both the coach park and staff car park. 

1.4 The site is located within the Albert Park Conservation Area.

1.5 This application seeks planning permission for a three-storey building to 
accommodate a school reception, porters lodge, house rooms and computer 
science and economics teaching rooms. The building is also proposed to link 
to the Yang Science Centre. 

1.6 A site location plan is below:

1.7 Extracts of the application plans are attached at Appendix 1.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 Below is a summary of the responses received to the submission. A full copy of 

all comments made can be viewed online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk,

Abingdon Town 
Council

Objection
 The design is unattractive and adversely affects 

the character of the local area
 The scale, mass and height of the building 

represents an overdevelopment of the site
 The proposed development does not preserve or 

enhance the conservation area and would be at 
the detriment of the conservation area

 The proposals do not make adequate provision 
for parking and further development would 
exacerbate the problem

Page 48

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

 The provision of a Masterplan by the school is 
very important to guide future developments in an 
appropriate manner.

Conservation 
Officer (Vale of 
White Horse DC)

No objection
 An up-to-date evidence base has been provided
 The proposed development can be achieved 

whilst respecting the heritage assets
 The proposal will bring enhancements and better 

reveal the setting of the Victorian villas on Park 
Crescent, the Conservation Area and the setting 
of Albert Park a Registered Park and Garden.

 The scale and massing of the proposed block is 
not overly dominant in views and incidental 
glimpsed views from Park Crescent

 Landscaping will soften and enhance the 
proposal site. 

 Recommended conditions

Countryside 
Officer (Vale of 
White Horse DC)

No objection

Air Quality (Vale 
of White Horse 
DC)

No objection

Contaminated 
Land (Vale of 
White Horse DC)

No objection

Environmental 
Protection Team 
(Vale of White 
Horse DC)

No objection

Forestry Officer 
(Vale of White 
Horse DC)

No objection
 The intended construction work will not have an 

adverse impact on the adjacent trees
 The protection of the trees will need to be 

safeguarded during the construction process, a 
tree protection plan will need to be submitted and 
agreed via condition.

Architects Panel 
(Vale of White 
Horse DC)

 Follows design of existing fenestration and 
brickwork

 Some reservations of roof form and its 
relationship to the existing

 No major objections as it should be quality 
architecture

Oxfordshire 
County Council

Transport - No objection

Page 49



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

 There will be no increase in the number of pupils 
or staff and therefore there is no requirement for 
additional transport infrastructure or parking 
spaces

 There will be a revised internal gated access to 
the car park and a loss of existing parking

 The existing spaces that would be impacted by 
the development would be satisfactorily relocated 
within the site so that there will be no loss in the 
number of spaces available.

 It is not possible to assess or comment upon the 
cumulative impact of all the development 
proposals indicated on the masterplan however 
the potential cumulative impacts should be 
properly considered as further applications for 
development and expansion come forward.

Archaeology – No objection

SGN Plant 
Protection

Assets identified within the vicinity, but outside the 
application site. 

Gigaclear PLC There are no assets within the immediate vicinity of the 
site.

Thames Water  With regards to surface water drainage, if the 
developer follows the sequential approach to the 
disposal of surface water there is no objection. If 
the developer proposes to discharge to a public 
sewer prior approval will be required.

Response from 
one local 
resident (46 
Norman Avenue)

Objection
 Proposed building is oversized and will block the 

pleasant views of the school buildings and 
playing fields from Faringdon Road

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P15/V1502/FUL - Approved (19/08/2015)

Temporary siting of Faringdon Lodge, a single storey modular building, to 
provide an estates management office for period of three years.

P15/V1463/DIS - Approved (11/08/2015)
Demolition of existing school building (Medical Centre). Erection of a three 
storey Science Centre and the reconfiguration of the existing coach park, 
including alterations to the points of ingress and egress. Discharge of 
conditions 3, 4, 5 and 7 of P12/V2373/FUL (as amended by additional 
information received on 21 July 2015).

P15/V1247/DIS - Approved (08/07/2015)

Page 50

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V1502/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V1463/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V1247/DIS


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

Discharge condition 10 (travel plan) of planning permission P12/V2373/FUL.
Demolition of existing school building (Medical Centre). Erection of a three 
storey science centre and the reconfiguration of the existing coach park, 
including alterations to the points of ingress and egress.

P14/V1704/DIS - Approved (24/02/2015)
Discharge conditions 3 (internal and external boundaries), 8 (Construction 
Traffic Management Plan) and 11 (Surface water and foul water drainage) of 
planning permission P12/V2373/FUL.
Demolition of existing school building (Medical Centre). Erection of a three 
storey Science Centre and the reconfiguration of the existing coach park

P14/V1022/NM - Approved (11/06/2014)
Demolition of existing school building (Medical Centre). Erection of a three 
storey Science Centre and the reconfiguration of the existing coach park, 
including alterations to the points of ingress and egress.(Non-material 
amendment to P12/V2373/FUL)

P13/V2326/FUL - Approved (13/12/2013)
Application to vary condition 2 of  planning application P13/V0878/FUL

P13/V1663/DIS - Approved (26/09/2013)
Discharge of conditions 3,4,6,8 and 9 of planning permission P13/V0878/FUL

P13/V0878/FUL - Approved (11/07/2013)
Reconfiguration and extension of the School's existing coach park, including 
alterations to the points of ingress and egress, on land within the School 
grounds.

P12/V2374/CA - Approved (24/01/2013)
Demolition of existing school building (Medical Centre).

P12/V2373/FUL - Approved (24/01/2013)
Demolition of existing school building (Medical Centre). Erection of a three 
storey Science Centre and the reconfiguration of the existing coach park, 
including alterations to the points of ingress and egress.

3.2 Pre-application History
There is no relevant pre-application history associated with this development.

3.3 Screening Opinion requests
None.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The proposal is not EIA development.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The relevant planning considerations in the determination of this application 

are:
1. The principle of development

Page 51

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/V1704/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/V1022/NM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V2326/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V1663/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V0878/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P12/V2374/CA
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P12/V2373/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

2. Design, local distinctiveness and the impact upon the Albert Park 
Conservation Area

3. Residential amenity
4. Traffic, parking and highway safety
5. Landscaping and trees
6. Flood risk and drainage

5.2 The principle of development
The site is located within the main town centre of Abingdon. Core Policy 3 of 
the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 identifies Abingdon as a market town which 
has the greatest long-term potential for development to support viable and 
sustainable communities.

5.3 Paragraph 94 of the NPPF states that great weight should be given to the need 
to create, expand or alter schools to ensure that a sufficient choice of school 
places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities.

5.4 The proposed development will appear as an extension to the Yang Science 
Centre within the confines of the existing school campus, replacing an existing 
temporary facility. It will provide a school reception, a porters lodge, house 
rooms and computer science and economics teaching rooms. Planning 
permission for the Yang Science Centre was granted in January 2013 under 
application ref. P12/V2373/FUL. This planning permission also provided 
consent for the erection of a two-storey lecture theatre joined to the science 
building in the location of the proposed development. Whilst this part of the 
development has never been constructed the permission remains extant.

5.5 Given that there is an extant permission on the site for a school building and 
the site is within the confines of the school campus within the main built area of 
Abingdon officers are satisfied that the principle of development is acceptable.

5.6 Design, local distinctiveness and the impact upon the Albert 
Park Conservation Area
CP37 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that proposals for new 
development will be required to be of a high-quality design that responds 
positively to the site and its surroundings. CP44 states that measures should 
be sought to integrate development into the landscape character of the area 
and that development should preserve and promote local distinctiveness and 
diversity.

5.7 The site is located within the Albert Park Conservation Area. CP39 confirms 
that new development should conserve, and where possible enhance 
designated heritage assets and their setting in accordance with national 
legislation. Policy HE1 saved from Local Plan 2011 states that development 
within or affecting the setting of a Conservation Area will not be permitted 
unless it preserves or enhances the established character or appearance of the 
area. It continues that development will only be permitted on gaps between 
buildings and other open spaces where such areas do not make a positive 
contribution to the special interest of the Conservation Area or views within, 
into or out from the Conservation Area which would be lost or damaged. 

Page 52



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

5.8 The proposed development is a three-storey building designed as an extension 
to the Yang Science Centre with bridge connections at the first and second 
floor linking to the existing building. The building is of a similar scale and 
massing as the existing building, with the rhythm of large window openings 
repeated. The proposed extension is to be set back by approximately 8 metres 
from the front elevation of the existing building. The ridge of the hipped roof is 
set down from the ridge of the proposed building with a contemporary glazed 
central section. Officers consider the proposed building will appear as a 
subordinate extension to the existing building. The colonnade element at 
ground floor level provides an attractive entrance to the school when viewed 
from Faringdon Road. 

5.9 Materials proposed include red facing brick to match the existing building and 
metal spandrel and louvre panels. Further details of materials can be required 
by condition to ensure that the contemporary design is articulated to the 
highest quality.  

5.10 In considering the effect of the proposed development on the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area officers are mindful of both the existing 
situation on site and the extent of the extant permission granted in 2013 (ref. 
P12/V2373/FUL. Currently a temporary single-storey portacabin style building 
is located adjacent to the Yang Science Centre; albeit with a high-quality timber 
clad finish. The rest of the application site area is hard standing and car parking 
which can be viewed intermittently along Faringdon Road. The extant planning 
permission gives consent for a two-storey lecture theatre building to be sited in 
this location adjoining the science building.

5.11 The application is supported by a Heritage Statement which has been revised 
to give clarity and a robust assessment of the proposed development following 
concerns raised by the case officer. This Heritage Statement has been 
considered alongside a Conservation Appraisal of the whole school campus 
carried out in October 2011 to consider the significance of the school within the 
Albert Park Conservation Area. 

5.12 The Conservation Officer has been consulted and has commented that the 
proposed development will bring enhancements to the Conservation Area and 
better reveal its setting as well as the setting of Albert Park a registered park 
and garden. The Conservation Officer has also commented that the scale and 
massing of the proposed block will not be overly dominant in views and 
incidental glimpsed views from Park Crescent to the rear.

5.13 The proposed development has been reviewed by the local authority’s 
Architects design review panel. The panel concluded that the proposed 
development represented quality architecture that follows the design of the 
existing fenestration and brickwork.  

5.14 Officers consider that the proposed development presents an attractive, high-
quality addition to the street scene along Faringdon Road. It compliments 
recent development on this part of the campus and enhances the character 

Page 53



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

and appearance of the Conservation Area creating an attractive entrance to the 
school site. Whilst the proposed building is of a larger scale than the lecture 
theatre building previously consented in this location officers do not consider 
that it will be overly dominant in views into the site from Faringdon Road, in 
contrast to the exiting building, or from incidental glimpsed views from within 
the Conservation Area from Park Crescent. 

5.15 Residential Amenity
The nearest residential property is approximately 45 metres away on the north 
side of Faringdon Road to the east of the playing fields, offset significantly from 
the application site and set behind a very well-established hedge. The 
proposed development is not considered to have any significant adverse 
impact upon the amenity of residential properties in terms of dominance, 
overshadowing or loss of light. 

5.16 Traffic, parking and highway impact
There will be no increase in the number of pupils or staff at the school as a 
result of the proposed development as it would provide supplementary teaching 
space and improved facilities. As a result, there are not proposed to be any 
additional traffic movements associated with the development. Oxfordshire 
County Council as the highways authority have been consulted on the 
application and have confirmed that there is no requirement for additional 
transport infrastructure. 

5.17 Given that the proposed development will not generate any additional staff or 
pupils, there is also no requirement for any additional parking spaces to be 
provided within the site. Plans submitted indicate that three parking spaces 
within the minibus and staff car park at the east of the application site will be 
displaced as a result of the proposed development. Additional information 
submitted by the applicant indicates that the further extent of this car park to 
the east can be reconfigured to ensure that there is no overall loss of any 
parking spaces. Oxfordshire County Council have commented that the 
displaced spaces have been shown to be satisfactorily relocated so that there 
will be no loss of spaces available. 

5.18 Landscape and Trees
Views into the site from Faringdon Rod are currently complimented and 
enhanced by some well-established trees and the low boundary stone wall 
which contributes positively to the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area.

5.19 The stone wall is to be retained with its current openings. The siting of the 
proposed building is proposed to be enhanced by the addition of landscaping 
beds at the front of the new building and at the access from Faringdon Road. 
Further details of the landscaping proposals are required by condition to ensure 
that they are appropriate to the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area and to ensure that an appropriate balance is achieved between the 
proposed landscaping and the amount of reconfigured hardstanding proposed 
to realign the internal footpath and car park access to the north and east of the 
building.

Page 54



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

5.20 The Forestry Officer has been consulted on the application and has confirmed 
that the proposed construction work will not have an adverse impact on the 
adjacent trees. No trees are proposed to be removed as a result of the 
proposed development. 

5.21 Flood Risk and drainage
Drainage information submitted with the application confirms that the site is 
within an area at very low risk of fluvial or overland flooding. Officers are 
unaware of any significant flood risks in the vicinity. A proposed drainage 
scheme has been provided which indicates that both the surface and foul water 
will be drained into systems put in place when the Yang Science Centre was 
constructed. It is recommended that further information is required by condition 
to confirm that the existing surface and foul drainage systems have capacity to 
meet the demands of this development as well as the existing science building. 

5.22 Other considerations
A comprehensive masterplan of future potential development sites across the 
School’s campus dated October 2011 has been submitted. This is for 
information purposes only and has no weight in the planning process. 
Consideration of this application is solely for the erection of a three-storey 
education building adjacent to the Yang Science Centre as detailed in the 
application documents. 

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 The proposed development will provide improved teaching facilities for the well-

established school. The building is of a design, scale and massing that is 
subordinate to and compliments the existing built form along Faringdon Road 
within the school site. Through appropriate landscaping it will enhance the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The proposed 
development will not generate any additional traffic movements at the site and 
the current level of parking provision will be retained. Officers are of the opinion 
that the application complies with the development plan and the provisions of 
the NPPF and should be supported.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies

CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP39  -  The Historic Environment
CP42  -  Flood Risk
CP44  -  Landscape

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 saved policies

DC5  -  Access
DC6  -  Landscaping

Page 55



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 January 2019

HE1  -  Preservation and Enhancement: Implications for Development

Emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 2
DP16 – Access
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity
DP36 – Heritage Assets
DP37 – Conservation Areas

Neighbourhood Plan
Abingdon does not currently have an adopted neighbourhood plan.

Supplementary Planning Guidance
- Design Guide (March 2015)

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)
Planning Practice Guidance

Author: Penny Silverwood
Email: penny.silverwood@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone: 01235 422600

Page 56

mailto:penny.silverwood@southandvale.gov.uk


T +44 (0)20 7430 2444   davidmorleyarchitects.co.uk

18 Hatton Place   London   EC1N 8RU

© David Morley Architects. Do not scale off drawing. 

P:

N:

D:

S:

Abingdon - Faringdon Lodge

Proposed Faringdon Lodge Faringdon Road

Proposed Faringdon LodgeNorth Entrance Coach ParkFaringdon Road Sports Pitches

Coach Part Hard and Soft LandscapingYang Science Centre Beyond

Red Facing Brick

Contrasting Brick

Powdercoated Metal Spandrel Panel

Grey Flat Roof Membrane

Powdercoated Metal Gutter

Pigmented Precast Concrete Cill

Cladding

Grey Zinc Standing Seam Roof 

Door Frame

Powdercoated Aluminium Window/ 

Powdercoated Aluminium Frame

Flat Glass Rooflight with 

Panel

Powdercoated Aluminium Louvre 

Panels

Metallic Powdercoated Metal Soffit 

Mirrored and Coloured Finish

Folded Metal Panel Soffit with 

to Roof Terrace

Coloured Concrete Paving Slabs 

Balustrade

Powdercoated Metal Framed Glass 

Flashing/ Capping

Powdercoated Aluminium Cill/ 

to First Floor Terrace and Bridge

Coloured Concrete Paving Slabs 

Door, Overpanel and Frame

Powdercoated Metal Louvred 

Metal Paint Finished Gate

W1

W2

Z1

G1 G1 G1 G1

G1 G1

S1 S1

G3

D1

G1

B1

Z1

G3

G1

G1

G1

G1

G1

W1

G1 G1

S1 S1

R2

R2

S2

S2

B1

B2

B2B2

G1

West Elevation
1:100 @ A1

2

East Elevation
1:100 @ A1

1

L1 L1

F1

G2

G2

Key Plan

Key

W1

W2

Z1

G1

G2

G3

L1

S1

S2

D1

R1

R2

P1

P2

B1

F1

F2

B2

0 5m

1:100 @ A1

21/09/2018

Elevations - East & West
694-15-021-P1

Appendix 1

P
age 57



T +44 (0)20 7430 2444   davidmorleyarchitects.co.uk

18 Hatton Place   London   EC1N 8RU

© David Morley Architects. Do not scale off drawing. 

P:

N:

D:

S:

Abingdon - Faringdon Lodge

Yang Science Centre Proposed Faringdon Lodge

Proposed Faringdon LodgeSports Pitches Yang Science Centre

Porters Lodge / Sports Centre Access and Minibus Parking

Red Facing Brick

Contrasting Brick

Powdercoated Metal Spandrel Panel

Grey Flat Roof Membrane

Powdercoated Metal Gutter

Pigmented Precast Concrete Cill

Cladding

Grey Zinc Standing Seam Roof 

Door Frame

Powdercoated Aluminium Window/ 

Powdercoated Aluminium Frame

Flat Glass Rooflight with 

Panel

Powdercoated Aluminium Louvre 

Panels

Metallic Powdercoated Metal Soffit 

Mirrored and Coloured Finish

Folded Metal Panel Soffit with 

to Roof Terrace

Coloured Concrete Paving Slabs 

Balustrade

Powdercoated Metal Framed Glass 

Flashing/ Capping

Powdercoated Aluminium Cill/ 

to First Floor Terrace and Bridge

Coloured Concrete Paving Slabs 

Door, Overpanel and Frame

Powdercoated Metal Louvred 

Metal Paint Finished Gate

Z1

Z1

W2

W2

W1

W1

W1

W1

W1

W1

G1

G1

G1G1G1

G1

G1

G1

G1

G3

G3

G2

W2

G1

G1 G1G1

G1 G1 G1

G1

S2

S2

G1

B1

B1B1

B2

S2

S2

R2

R2

B2 B2

South Elevation
1:100 @ A1

2

North Elevation
1:100 @ A1

1

L1 L1L1L1

L1

G2G2 G2

G1 L1 L1

G2

L1

B2

F1

Key Plan

Key

W1

W2

Z1

G1

G2

G3

L1

S1

S2

D1

R1

R2

P1

P2

B1

F1

F2

B2

0 5m

1:100 @ A1

21/09/2018

Elevations - North & South
694-15-020-P1

P
age 58



Stair

Store

Flexible Space

Staff WC

Lobby

WC
AWC

SUS

Plant

Porters Office

Reception

Science Centre

Adjacent Yang 

Science Centre

Adjacent Yang 

T +44 (0)20 7430 2444   davidmorleyarchitects.co.uk

18 Hatton Place   London   EC1N 8RU

© David Morley Architects. Do not scale off drawing. 

P:

N:

D:

S:

Abingdon School Faringdon Lodge

0 5m

N

1:100 @ A3

21/09/2018

Level 0 Plan

694-15-010-P1

P
age 59



Quiet Study HM Office 6th Form Space 6th Form Space HM Office Quiet Study

House RoomHouse RoomOffice/Store

Stair

Terrace

Level 1 Bridge Link

Science Centre

Adjacent Yang 

T +44 (0)20 7430 2444   davidmorleyarchitects.co.uk

18 Hatton Place   London   EC1N 8RU

© David Morley Architects. Do not scale off drawing. 

P:

N:

D:

S:

Abingdon School Faringdon Lodge

0 5m

1:100 @ A3

21/09/2018

Level 1 Plan

N

694-15-011-P1

P
age 60



Level 2 Corridor

Level 2 Link

External Terrace

Economics

Computer Science Computer Science

Economics Economics Economics Economics

Stair

Dept. Office

Science Centre

Adjacent Yang 

Bridge

T +44 (0)20 7430 2444   davidmorleyarchitects.co.uk

18 Hatton Place   London   EC1N 8RU

© David Morley Architects. Do not scale off drawing. 

P:

N:

D:

S:

Abingdon School Faringdon Lodge

0 5m

1:100 @ A3

21/09/2018

N

Level 2 Plan

694-15-012-P1

P
age 61



T +44 (0)20 7430 2444   davidmorleyarchitects.co.uk

18 Hatton Place   London   EC1N 8RU

© David Morley Architects. Do not scale off drawing. 

P:

N:

D:

S:

Abingdon - Faringdon Lodge

0 10m

Key Plan

Key

60.61

60.66

60.64

60.82

60.84

Sapling

60.91

60.87

60.75

Sapling

Sapling

60.66

60.94

CL 60.94

IC

RL 74.03

EL 70.45

E
L
 7

0
.4

5

60.48

60.47

60.60

60.51

60.64

60.53

60.45

60.60

60.56

60.60

CL 60.58

IC

CL 60.59

MH

CL 60.54

IC

CL 60.55

MH

CL 60.50

IC

Sprinkler

CL 60.64

IC

Sprinkler

60.77

60.76

60.69

60.66

60.67

60.64

60.68

60.54

60.63

60.76

60.76

60.83

60.90

60.83

60.73

60.71

60.60

60.69

60.74

60.79
60.77

60.72

60.64

60.60

60.65

60.71

60.80

60.81

60.77

60.69

60.63

60.57

60.56

60.61

60.70

60.76

60.79

60.78

60.72

60.65

60.59

60.52

60.49

60.52

60.58

60.62

60.69

60.75

60.89

60.92

60.89

60.89

60.88

60.82

60.79

60.71
60.76

60.83

60.85

60.88

59.74

59.79

59.84

59.90

59.96

60.02

60.15

60.09

60.02

59.96

59.91 59.50
KO59.8359.8759.86

Sapling

LP
Sapling

KO 59.45

59.93

59.80

59.54

CL 60.23

MH

CL 60.23

MH

60.17

60.14

60.10

60.08

60.84

60.85

61.64

61.84

61.85

61.55

61.42

61.65
61.64

61.63

UK 4h

Sapling

Sapling

Oak 10h

SI
UK 3h

BUBU

Ash 12h

SI

UK 5h

59.83
59.87

61.40

ToW

61.00

ToW

Sapling

KO

CL 60.03

MH

LP

Ash 12h
Acer 13h

Sapling

Sapling

PO

Brick

Gas
Pipe

Acer 10h

60.07

60.15

61.78

ToW

CL 59.97

IC CL 59.94

MH

59.98

59.94

59.92 59.87 59.76

59.32
59.38

59.45
59.55

59.58
59.61

59.57
59.5359.50

59.61
59.6659.71

60.14
60.31 60.05

59.99
59.91

60.10

61.18

60.87

H
o
a
rd
in

g
 2

h

60.87

60.90

60.91

60.86

61.63 61.65

61.42
61.40

61.4061.32

61.72
61.63

61.59
61.51

Beech 12h

BU

UK 11h

Sapling

BU
Sapling

BU

Sapling
Sapling

61.22

H/chestnut 13h

60.92

ToW
61.10

ToW61.08

ToW61.09

ToW

ST04

S700

S401

ST08

S801

60.86

CL 61.01

MH

60.88

60.93

60.96

60.95

60.95

60.73

60.97

60.79

60.87

60.87

60.94

60.50

FL

Ash 3h

LP

60.8860.87

60.87

60.84

60.97

60.78

Cherry 6h

Acer 13h

60.82

S
to

n
e
 

60.93

60.59

UK 14h

LP

61.01

60.83
60.89 60.88

60.95

60.88

60.81

60.73

61.01

61.03

60.93

60.8860.80

60.24

60.97

60.72

60.70

60.88

w
a
ll 1
.6

h

Rugby
 posts

riser

housing

Stone wall
Stone wall

Stone w
all

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Parking

bays

Parking

bays

Parking

bays

Grass

Grass

Sprinkler

Rugby pitch

(grass)

Rugby pitch

(grass)

Post a
nd 

rope f
ence

Post a
nd 

rope fe
nce

Post and 
rope fence

Post an
d 

rope fe
nce

P
o
s
t a

n
d
 

ro
p
e
 fe

n
c
e

P
o
s
t a

n
d
 

ro
p
e
 fe

n
c
e

BU

UK 11h

H
e
d
g
e
 0
.5

h

I/R 1.8h

Hedge 0
.5h

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

H
o
a
rd
in
g
 2
h

H
e
d
g
e
 0
.5
h

Crushed

stone

Stone ret

Stone ret

Conc

Conc

Grass

F
lu
s
h
 k
e
rb

60.32

60.44

60.32

60.43

60.32

60.44

60.31

60.43

60.31

60.45

DP

59.35

59.38

59.47

59.41

59.50 59.37

59.46
59.33

59.43
59.31

GG

MP LP

SV

FH

EP
RS

59.63

GG

59.56

59.68

59.50

59.61
59.45

59.55
59.39

59.49
59.33

GG

EP

59.50

59.56

59.56
59.61

59.6659.7359.83

59.34

59.37

59.48

59.39
59.43

59.44
59.47

59.45
59.49

59.53
59.64

59.71

59.61 59.60
59.39

59.34

59.40

59.43

59.12

59.26

59.29

OHL

OHL

O
H

L

OHL

O
H

L

EL 70.42

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt Asphalt

30mph speed limit Asphalt

SCHOOLKEEPCLEAR

Centre

Yang Science

Faringdon Road 

EMERGENCYACCESSNOPARKING

EMERGENCYACCESSNOPARKING

59.67

60.80

60.45

60.50

60.45

Application Boundary

Parking spaces removed

Parking spaces relocated

N

1:200 @ A1

30/11/2018

Site Plan
694-15-P2-001

P
age 62



T +44 (0)20 7430 2444   davidmorleyarchitects.co.uk

18 Hatton Place   London   EC1N 8RU

© David Morley Architects. Do not scale off drawing. 

P:

N:

D:

S:

Abingdon School Faringdon Lodge

0 10m

Faringdon Road 

Yang Science

Centre
Porters

Lodge

60.8160.82
60.93

60.88

FL

60.24

PO

60.39

DP

CL 60.37

IC

63.78

Flat roof

RL 74.03

EL 70.45

60.4160.38
60.34

DP

BX

Sprinkler

Sprinkler

60.91

60.86
60.84

60.82

60.80

60.90

60.84
60.85

60.83 60.83

60.81

60.8160.84
60.46

60.87
60.90

60.89

60.83

60.87
60.89

60.5160.50

59.7459.7959.8459.90

59.91

59.50

KOKO

59.45
DC 59.43

59.41

59.50

59.56

59.8460.07

60.31

60.20 59.97

5
9
.7
0

5
9
.5

6

60.42

60.4760.50

60.53
60.27 60.00

59.97

59.82

5
9
.7
3

5
9
.5

6

LP

CL 59.67

MH

CL 59.57

MH

CL 59.49

MH

CL 59.45

MH

59.95

59.93 59.80 59.54

EMERGENCY

59.66

CL 60.23

MH
CL 60.23

MH

60.53

60.10
60.08

VP

VP

SI

59.63

59.73

59.84

60.08

60.56

60.70
60.84 60.85

61.64
61.84

61.85

61.69

61.55

Shrubbery

61.42

61.65

61.64
61.63

UK 4h
Sapling

Sapling

Oak 10h

SI UK 3h

BU

BU Ash 12h

SI

59.83

59.87

60.19

60.66 60.80

60.81

59.57

59.53

59.50

61.08

ToW

61.09

ST04

ST06

S607

ST09

61.00

60.73

60.98

CL 60.64

MH

60.50

FL

60.5460.54

60.56

60.83

60.90

60.93

60.64

60.88
60.24

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

stone

ACCESSNOPARKING

Stone wall

LP

LP

DC

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

I/
R
 1

h

I/R 1h

I/
R
 1

h

Grass

Gravel

I/R
 1

h

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Parking

bays

Parking

bays

DC

Post and 

rope fence

Post and 

rope fence

av 0.5h

Grass

Grass

Stone ret

60.32

60.44

60.31

60.43

60.31

60.45

DP

60.42

CL 60.40

MH

59.38

59.47

59.41

59.50

EP
59.50

59.56

59.37

59.48 OHL

EL 70.42

Asphalt

Key

Application Boundary

1:200 @ A3

21/09/2018

694-00-003-P1

N

Existing Site Plan

P
age 63


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 P18/V2227/RM - Parcel South East A, Crab Hill, Reading Road, Wantage, OX12 8HT
	P18/V2227/RM - Parcel South East A, Crab Hill, Reading Road, Wantage - Appendices
	PL-03 Rev E Planning Layout
	SS-01 rev A Street Scenes


	8 P18/V2049/FUL - Land at Park Farm, East Challow
	P18/V2049/FUL - Land at Park Farm, East Challow - Appendices
	PL01 Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	PL01


	PL03A Block Plan Proposed


	9 P18/V2481/FUL - Abingdon School Faringdon Road Abingdon, OX14 1BQ
	P18/V2481/FUL - Abingdon School Faringdon Road Abingdon - Appendices
	Elevations E&W Proposed drwgno 694-15-021-P1
	Elevations N&S Proposed drwgno 694-15-020-P1
	Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 694-15-010-P1
	Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 694-15-011-P1
	Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 694-15-012-P1
	Site Plan drwgno 694-15-001-P2
	Site Plan Existing drwgno 694-00-003-P1





